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INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Regular Meeting
of the
Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

PRELIMINARY
AGENDA
APRIL 23, 2024

At 1:00 p.m.

Agenda Subject to Change

Roll Call

Minutes for Meeting February 29, 2024
Financials for December 2023 and January 2024
Approval of Audit 2023

Approval of PAAA 2023 Annual Report
Resolutions for Consideration:

I. Inducement Resolution -The Kearney Realty & Development Group Inc. (The Abbey on the
Park at 21-23 Park Ave)

Il. Inducement Resolution - 636 South Broadway Partners LLC

lll. Resolution Ratifying Warburton Avenue Apartments LLC LDA Second Amendment Extension
to June 30, 2024

IV. Amendment Resolution Correcting Certain Factual Information Regarding Miroza Tower LLC
Project Description

V. Resolution Authorizing Consent to a Transfer of an Interest Relating to Sacred Heart
Associates LP

7) Other Business/and Any Other Business that Comes Before the Board
8) Legal Updates

9) Adjournment
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DRAFT

470 Nepperhan Avenue, Suite 200

MAYOR MIKE SPANO - Chairman

MARLYN ANDERSON - Secretary

MELISSA NACERINO - Treasurer (Excused)

CECILE SINGER - Member

VICTOR GJONAJ - Member

HENRY DJONBALAJ - Member

ROBERT ESPIRITU - Member (Excused)

I D A S T A F F:

JIM CAVANAUGH - IDA President & CEO

JAIME MCGILL - IDA Executive Director

SIBY OOMMEN - IDA/YEDC Chief Fiscal
Officer
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OTHER ATTENDEES:

John Saraceno - Verus Development LLC/Trinity Associates LLC

John B. Saraceno - Verus Development LLC/ Trinity Ass ociates LLC
Jennifer Laird-White - CPHE LLC/TDI-USA Holdings LLC

Todd Singer - CHPE LLC/ TDI-USA Holdings LLC

Michael Mitnick - AMS Acquisitions

Janet Giris - Dellbello Donnellan Weingarten Wise & Wiederkehr LLP
Dean Bender - Thompson & Bender
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REGULAR MEETING

MAYOR SPANO: Good afternoon.

MR. OOMMEN: Mayor Mike Spano.

MAYOR SPANO: Here.

MR. OOMMEN: Marlyn Anderson.

MS. ANDERSON: Here.

MR. OOMMEN: Cecile Singer.

MS. SINGER: Here.

MR. OOMMEN: Henry Djonbalaj.

MR. DJONBALAJ: Here.

MR. OOMMEN: Victor Gjonaj.

MR. GJONAUJ: Here.

MR. OOMMEN: Melissa and
Roberto are excused. Mayor, we have
a quorum.

MAYOR SPANO: Okay. Good
morning, everyone. We have the
minutes in front of each you for the
January 23rd, 2024 meeting. All of
you are eligible to vote for that.
Are there any questions on those
minutes? Cecile.

MS. SINGER: Motion.

MAYOR SPANO: Cecile's made a
motion to accept the minutes,
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REGULAR MEETING

seconded by Henry. All in favor?

(A chorus of ayes.)

MAYOR SPANO: Any negatives?
Hearing none, the minutes are passed.

Jaime, resolutions for
consideration.

MS. MCGILL: Our first item 1is
a final resolution for Yonkers BV AMS
LLC. We have Michael Curti here to
represent the transaction, as well as
counsel for the project and the
principal, Mike Mitnick.

MR. CURTI: Thank you very
much. Good afternoon, Chair, also
members of the board. Before you 1is
the final resolution for the Teutonia
project. You heard a presentation at
your last board meeting. Since that
time we did have the public hearing
on this project.

This project is an existing
project of the IDA. There have been
various iterations of it over time.

This project proposal that is before

800.727.6396
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REGULAR MEETING
you for final approval today is
probably one of the more robust of
the options or developments that have
been presented to the board.

It contemplates two towers, one
tower with 510 residential units, 544
parking spaces, 2,200 square feet of
ground level retail and commercial
space. The other tower with 396
rental units, 700 square feet of
ground floor retail and commercial
space, and 363 parking spaces.

If there's any questions, we do
have representatives of the applicant
to answer them from the IDA, and also
the executive director will present
the cost-benefit analysis before you
vote. Thank you.

MAYOR SPANO: Cecile has a
question.

MS. SINGER: I looked at the
financing, and it's an interesting
structure, and I would like more of
an explanation.

Diamond Reporting
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REGULAR MEETING

MR. MITNICK: What sort of
questions?

MAYOR SPANO: She's looking for
more of an explanation how on the
financing structure. You want to
come up, Mike?

MS. SINGER: Yeah, I mean
because you have bonds, what -- how
-- you know, tell me.

MR. MITNICK: We're assuming just the typical mortg

MS. SINGER: I understand that
you're looking for a profit, and I
looked at all of that, but there's a
big reach in all of this and so I'm
interested.

MR. CURTI: I think, just to
the chair, with regard to this
financing, it's going to be
conventional financing, if I'm not
mistaken, correct?

MR. MITNICK: That's our
expectation.

MS. GIRIS: Yes.

MR. CURTI: With, you know,

jage
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REGULAR MEETING
obviously some debt and equity,
you know, probably in the 30 to 35
percent range on the equity side. Is
that fair to say?
MS. GIRIS: Yes.
MR. MITNICK: Yes.

MR. CURTI: So there's going to

MR. MITNICK: Two phases. We
don't really expect bonds at this
time. We just expect a typical
mortgage.

MS. GIRIS: And as Mr. Curti
said, the project is anticipated to
be constructed in two phases. So the
first phase will be that first tower,
510 units in that tower. That will
be constructed first. Once that 1is
completed and stabilized then
construction of a second tower will
begin. So there will be different
tranches of financing, construction
financing for the project, but it 1is

typical construction financing.

800.727.6396
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REGULAR MEETING

MS. SINGER: So it will be
according to interest rates, of
course, that's where your
profitability comes in, the
differential between your cash flows.

MR. MITNICK: Sure.

MS. SINGER: And the interest
rate.

MR. MITNICK: Yeah. It would
be nice if rates came down a bit.
That would help.

MS. SINGER: Right, right.

It's unfortunate.

MR. MITNICK: That would help a
lot. Yeah.

MS. SINGER: All right. And do
you have any other comments about the
financing?

MR. MITNICK: The financing in
particular?

MS. SINGER: Yes.

MR. MITNICK: You know, I'd
just say that we look forward to this
getting built. It's not easy to pull
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REGULAR MEETING

off a job 1like this, but we have a
passion for it, and we've been at it
since 2019 I think and we 1look
forward to it.

MS. SINGER: Right, right.
Now, obviously you've thought it
through, and of course to bring it in
is going to be another interesting
phase, and certainly for the city
it's a positive. But financing is
very tricky, you know, it's a lot of
bond financing, so it will be at the
interest rate that will be at that
point, et cetera.

MR. MITNICK: Yeah.

MS. SINGER: And it's what your
net is going to be from that.

MR. MITNICK: We have our work
cut out for us for sure.

MS. SINGER: All right, thank
you.

MR.MITNICK: Thank you.

MS. GIRIS: Thank you.

MAYOR SPANO: Any questions

800.727.6396
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REGULAR MEETING
from anybody else on the board?
Thank you, Cecile. Hearing no
questions.

MS. MCGILL: We just have to do
quickly --

MAYOR SPANO: We have to do --
Jaime, go ahead with the cost-benefit
analysis.

MS. MCGILL: And if I can Jjust
remind everyone to please make sure
your microphones are turned on.

Okay. So a brief summary of
the financial assistance and impact
analysis performed by Storrs &
Associates. This $478,000,000
project converts a vacant lot into two
residential towers with 906 units
collectively, adding 91 affordable
units to the city. The total project
is expected to generate by way of
direct, indirect and induced jobs
approximately 2,869 jobs through the
construction phase and 55 full-time

jobs through it's ongoing operations.

800.727.6396
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REGULAR MEETING

The project requested mortgage
recording tax abatement on
$303,000,000 of mortgage, sales tax
abatement of 145 -- I'm sorry, on a
$145,000,000 of construction
purchases, and a 20-year PILOT on
each phase of the project. A third
party analyzed the request as well as
several more abbreviated scenarios,
and the determination is that the
benefit package as requested allows
the project to be viable and achieve
conservative benchmark returns.

The benefit to cost ratio to
the city on both phases of the
project is over $2.35 of benefit to
Yonkers for every dollar provided in
benefit to the project. This results
in a net fiscal benefit to Yonkers of
over $43,000,000 over the life of the
project. Considering the fiscal
benefit to the city, community
benefits and quality of 1life impact

that this project investment brings,

800.727.6396
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REGULAR MEETING
the recommendation is to approve the
package as analyzed and reported.

Additionally, this package
would amend the currentPILOT on the
project from 2023 through 2025 to be
land-only payment. The current pilot
assumed completion of the project by
2023, andthe PILOT schedule
reflected that assessment. Our
third-party also analyzed this and
confirmed that this amendment is
warranted and conveys no additional
benefit to the project.

MAYOR SPANO: Okay. Any other
questions? Hearing no questions,
Cecile's made a motion, seconded by
Victor. All in favor?

(A chorus of ayes.)

MAYOR SPANO: Any negatives?
Hearing none. Resolution is passed.
Jaime, thank you.

MS. MCGILL: Our next item is
an inducement resolution, CHPE LLC.

This is Champlain Hudson Power

800.727.6396
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REGULAR MEETING
Express. We have Todd Singer here
from the project to represent the
project, and Michael Curti as
transaction counsel.

MR. SINGER: Good afternoon,
everyone. Thank you for having us
here. Appreciate that. We submitted
a very brief presentation, but maybe
just give a little bit of a voiceover
on the project.

So our project is a 1,250
megawatt HVDC transmission line
coming from the US/Canada border all
the way into New York City. The
Yonkers piece is about four miles of
that, about $22,000,000 in capital
costs.

Our power on the line will be
hydro power from Canada and it's
going to supply -- it's going to
reduce carbon emissions in New York
City and it's going to supply over 20
percent of the power to New York

City, so very big impact that will

800.727.6396
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REGULAR MEETING
have the impact of essentially taking
44 percent of the cars off New York
City streets. So it's a very large
infrastructure project. We expect
the in-service in May 2026. We
started construction in Q4 2022.

From a support perspective, and
permit perspective, we have all of
our permits which is what's enabling
us to start construction, and we have
very broad support. As you get into
construction we're obviously
encountering day-to-day things but
managing those with Jen White and our
team. From a jobs perspective,
overall on the project we will peak
at about 1,400 construction jobs with
significantly higher secondary and
induced jobs.

Again with respect to Yonkers,
it's about four miles. It's buried
all underwater, so it will just go
right in the Hudson River. We'll be

on the river for weeks as opposed to

800.727.6396
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REGULAR MEETING

months and years, and once it's
constructed, if all goes well, which
it should, you'll never hear from us
again and we won't be using municipal
services, won't be using police,
won't be sending children to school
and so forth.

And so that's the -- that's
kind of a brief overview of the
project and, and from a benefits
perspective, the benefits we included
here -- and I can read the numbers
without glasses. These are the
overall benefits upon the project, and
that's really divided into five
different buckets. You got
electricity savings, increased
economic output, reduced -- benefits
of reduced carbon emissions, new tax
revenue throughout the state, and
then the jobs as I mentioned.
Overall through the first 25 years of
operation, we expect to be just shy

of $50,000,000,000, five zero billion

800.727.6396
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REGULAR MEETING
dollars of economic benefit to the
state.

And from an environmental
perspective, I already spoke about
the 44 percent of the cars off of New
York City streets. We also have a
$117,000,000 fund to clean up and
fund the projects in the Hudson River
as well as Lake Champlain and the
Harlem River which are other water
body routes, and that's going to be
spent over the first 35 years of the
project. We've already started that.

We also have from a jobs
perspective a $40,000,000 green
economy fund to enable training in
green economy jobs and people
transitioning into the workforce and
bringing people from disadvantaged
communities into the workforce as
well.

From an organized labor
perspective, we obviously have to be

-- not obviously, but you can't build

800.727.6396
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REGULAR MEETING

a project in New York City without
organized labor. We have over
3,000,000 labor hours that are going
to be utilized on the entire job --
this is not just Yonkers -- across
over 20 unions, 21 different unions.
So we're a union-friendly project,
and from a -- and in the rivers it
will be obviously significantly 1less
than the 3,000,000 jobs, but it will
be significant from a labor hour
perspective and jobs perspective.
That's how it all comes together.

In terms of our technology,
HPDC technology, because we're
bringing power over such a long
distance, direct current is a better
way to do that. That's not what
comes through the wall. AC current
comes through the wall. So we bring
the power down from the US/Canada
border, have a converter station in
New York City which converts it to AC

power at a very high voltage,

800.727.6396
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REGULAR MEETING

obviously, the AC power and that goes
onto the grid in New York City.

So -- and that's the overview
of the project briefly, touched on a
lot of different things. Happy to
take any questions.

MAYOR SPANO: Anybody have any
questions?

MR. CAVANAUGH: Just one
comment.

MAYOR SPANO: Okay. Jim
Cavanaugh.

MR. CAVANAUGH: I don't know
the gentleman specifically outlined
this, but this project will pay full

taxes. It's a little unusual in that

where our office is not

assessor's

generally used to assigning a tax
number to power lines under the
water. So what we're doing, we're
looking at -- we're analyzing how
other jurisdictions have reached the
proper taxable level to this project,

and so we will be coming back to the

800.727.6396
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REGULAR MEETING
board with our final tax status.

Now, you know, they're asking
for a PILOT, not so much to get a
reduction in taxes but just to get a
level of certainty because there is
long-term financing for this project.
So I do wantto emphasize this 1is
really not a tax break, it is a fully
taxable project.

MR. SINGER: Yeah, and I guess
the other comment I'd add, Jim, is
that the certainty point has run
through. We have seven other PILOTs
in place with various counties and
another two that will be closing here
in hopefully the next one to three
months, and the certainty has
absolutely resonated.

MR. CAVANAUGH: Right.

MR. SINGER: An HVDC transition
project doesn't really exist in New
York State, and it's a challenge when
you have 152 jurisdictions, towns,

villages, school districts, it's a

800.727.6396
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REGULAR MEETING

lot of variability from our
perspective and lot of wvariability
from a jurisdictions perspective.

MAYOR SPANO: Okay. Any other
questions? Hearing none.

MS. ANDERSON: I make a motion.

MAYOR SPANO: Marlyn's made a
motion, seconded by Henry. All in
favor?

(A chorus of ayes.)

MAYOR SPANO: Any negatives?
The item is passed.

Jaime, our final resolution is
a resolution authorizing YIDA's
annual bond allocation to be
transferred to YEDC for the benefit
of Verus Development LLC. This is
the 345 MclLean Avenue Project. We
have Michael Curti here to represent
the transaction.

MR. CURTI: Yes. With regard
to this item that's before you, it's
a little interesting because we are

asking the board to authorize the

800.727.6396
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REGULAR MEETING
bond allocation transfer at this
meeting. What you'll hear at the
next meeting is the presentation on
the actual development itself. I
would suggest maybe that the
developer speak a little bit about
the project as a whole and then I'1l1l
go into a little bit about the
resolution.

MS. MCGILL: And then just to
remind the board, we have granted
final approval on this project at
previous meetings, so they do have
authorizations for benefit. They're
just now coming back to seek bonds.

MR. CURTI: And to be clear,
the bond issue would come from YEDC,
not the IDA. The YEDC is going to
have to ask the regional council for
additional volume cap. There isn't
sufficient volume cap at the IDA to
fully fund the project. The concept
here would be the IDA transferring

its volume cap allocation to YEDC.

800.727.6396
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REGULAR MEETING
We Jjust did that last year with
Whitney Young, we have done that in
the past. There is a benefit to the
developer because they save on the
bond issuance charge, which is a
charge that goes to New York State
and obviously it makes us a little
more competitive in terms of our fee
that we charge at YEDC.

MR. SARACENO: Good afternoon,
Mr. Mayor, members of the board.
Thank you for having us. My name 1is
John Saraceno. This is also John
Saraceno, S-A-R-A-C-E-N-0O. We are
with Verus Development. We've been
here a couple of times over the
years.

Just a quick reminder what this
project 1is. This is a 12-story
senior affordable housing project
located on McLean Avenue just south
of the Saw Mill exit. It consists of
one to two-bedroom apartments.

Income levels are below 60 percent.

800.727.6396
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There are a 105 units. It will be
financed hopefully with IDA bonds,
four percent low income housing tax
credits. Westchester County is
providing funds through HIF and HFF,
as well as Yonkers home funds and
eight project-based vouchers. Total
cost is about 59 and a half million
and, you know, we are looking for
bonds in the amount of 29,000,000
which is both short-term and
long-term. So long-term it would be
nine and a half million, short-term
would be retired at the completion of
construction.

MAYOR SPANO: Okay. Any
questions? All right. Then we'll
take the matter up further in
the next meeting.

MR. CURTI: Yes. Well,
actually, Mayor, if we could adopt a
resolution authorizing the transfer
at this meeting. The resolution

before you would allow the IDA to

800.727.6396
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allocate or to assign its bond
allocation over to YEDC. And then
what YEDC would do is we'd send an
application over to the regional
council to ask them to allocate the
remaining volume cap allocation.

MAYOR SPANO: So this would be
a resolution authorizing the YIDA the
annual bond allocation transfer to
YEDC, right?

MR. CURTI: Correct.

MAYOR SPANO: So Cecile's made
a motion.

MS. ANDERSON: Second.

MAYOR SPANO: Seconded by
Marlyn. All in favor?

(A chorus of ayes.)

MAYOR SPANO: Any negatives?
Hearing none, the items is passed.
MR. SARACENO: Thank you.

MAYOR SPANO: Okay. There are
no other resolutions. And the other
business we have is just to remind

you, couple of weeks ago Bob

800.727.6396
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REGULAR MEETING
Gottschall passed away. He was a
member here for a while, so just
wanted to mention for the record, our
condolences to him and to his --
well, not his condolences to him
rather -- to his family.

Any other business? Hearing
none. Somebody want to make a
motion? Victor's made a motion we
adjourn, seconded by Henry. All in
favor?

(A chorus of ayes.)

MAYOR SPANO: Any negatives?
We're adjourned.

(Whereupon, at 1:21 P.M., the
above matter concluded.)

° ° ° o
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CERTTIU FTIO CATE

STATE OF NEW YORK )
SS.:
COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER )

I, NATHAN DAVIS, a Notary Public for
and within the State of New York, do hereby
certify:

That the above is a correct
transcription of my stenographic notes.

I further certify that I am not
related to any of the parties to this
action by blood or by marriage and that I
am in no way interested in the outcome of
this matter.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

set my hand this 4th day of March 2024.

Yoo Dersase-

NATHAN DAVIS
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Yonkers Industrial Development Agency
Income Statement
For the Current Month Ending December 31, 2023

Current Month Current Month Vanance Current Month ~ Variance Budget
This Year Last Year Over/(Under) Budget Qurrent Month

Revenues
Agency Fees S 42446988 § 462,40000 $  (37,930.12) $ 963,750.00 § (539,280.12)
Management Fees 1,500.00 80,000.00 (78,500.00) - 1,500.00
Application Fees - - - - -
Pier License Fee (18,417.00) (5,251.00) (13,166.00) 15,000.00 (33,417.00)
Interest Earned IDA Savings 13,068.95 11,537.83 1,531.12 - 13,068.95
Lease Interest Revenue 2,308.00 13,580.00 (11,272.00) - 2,308.00
Repayment from COY - - - - -
Miscellaneous - - - 300.00 (300.00)
Subtotal IDA Revenues 422,929.83 562,266.83 (139,337.00) 979,050.00 (556,120.17)
Workforce Grant 140,110.34 206,222.06 (66,111.72) 94,613.00 45,497.34
Total Revenues 563,040.17 768,488.89 (205,448.72) 1,073,663.00 (510,622.83)
Expenses
Acct Pay Estimation Variance - - - - -
Salaries 26,774.34 99,924.71 (73,150.37) 54,220.00 (27,445.66)
Rental Expense - 9,337.01 (9,337.01) 14,217.00 (14,217.00)
Payroll Taxes-FICA 1,791.96 7,596.01 (5,804.05) 5,061.00 (3,269.04)
Pension Costs 95,817.00 (56,495.41) 152,312.41 - 95,817.00
Depreciation Expense 404.00 1,958.64 (1,554.64) - 404.00
Payroll Taxes-Ul - - - - -
Payroll / Tax Processing 568.65 380.56 188.09 528.00 40.65
Employec Benefits 1,300.28 5,245.21 (3,944.93) 39,792.00 (38.491.72)
Office Supplics 2.18 2,090.77 (2,088.59) 700.00 (697.82)
Office Furniture - - - 5,000.00 (5,000.00)
Equipment - - - - -
Postage & Delivery - - - - -
Printing & Reproduction 1,997.79 1,211.25 786.54 830.00 1,167.79
Appraisal Fees - - - 6,250.00 {6,250.00)
Insurance - - - 3,046.00 (3,046.00)
Legal Fees (8,677.00) 23,408.00 {32,085.00) 15,000.00 (23,677.00)
Public Hearings - - - - -
Professional Fees - - - - -
Audit & Accounting Fees 36,950.00 35,450.00 1,500.00 2,000.00 34,950.00
Consulting Fees 105,000.00 10,000.00 95,000.00 16,333.00 88,667.00
Advertising 7.602.50 3,975.00 3,627.50 6,000.00 1,602.50
Pre-Apprenticeship Expenses - - - - -
Auto Expense - 350.00 (350.00) 375.00 (375.00)
Conferences & Travel - - - 350.00 (350.00)
Business Meetings 758.25 1,070.95 (312.70) 1,775.00 (1,016.75)
Dues & Subscriptions 901.25 2,211.68 (1,310.43) 1,150.00 (248.75)
Miscellaneous (0.19) 0.18) (0.01) 100.00 (100.19)
Communications 1,156.12 1,777.32 (621.20) 1,759.00 (602.88)
Bad Debt Expense 2,220.00 (10,000.00) 12,220.00 - 2,220.00
Pier Proj NYPA Expense 2,832.00 469.13 2,362.87 10,561.00 (7,729.00)
Pier Proj Sec 108 Note Int Exp 15,785.00 (67,412.05) 83,197.05 - 15,785.00
Picr Proj Other Expenses - - - 8,333.00 (8,333.00)
Pier Depreciation Expense 550,701.00 550,701.00 - - 550,701.00
Write Down to Current -Larkin - - - - -
COVID Grant Expense - 17,791.66 (17,791.66) - -
Subtotal IDA Expenses 843,885.13 641,041.26 202,843.87 193,380.00 650,505.13
Workforce Salaries 139,239.35 194,961.40 (55,722.05) 67,533.00 71,706.35
Workforce-Payroll Related Exp. 11,272.47 26,609.98 (15,337.51) 6,952.00 4,320.47
Workforce Employee Benefits 52,342.99 56,176.62 (3,833.63) 20,128.00 32,214.99
Subtotal WIB Expenses 202,854.81 277,748.00 (74,893.19) 94,613.00 108,241.81
Total Expenses 1,046,739.94 918,789.26 127,950.68 287,993.00 758,746.94
Net Income [DA (420,955.30) (78,774.43) (342,180.87) 785,670.00  (1,206,625.30)
Net Income WIB (62,744.47) (71,525.94) 8,781.47 - (62,744.47)
Net Income $ (483,699.77) $ (150,300.37) $ (333,399.40) $ 785,670.00 $ (1,269,369.77)
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Acct Pay Estimation Variance

Salaries
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Payroll Taxes-FICA
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Payroll / Tax Processing
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Office Supplics

Office Fumiture
Equipment

Depreciation Expense
Postage & Delivery
Printing & Reproduction
Insurance

Legal Fees

Professional Fees
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Public Hearings

Audit & Accounting Fees
Consulting Fees
Advertising
Pre-Apprenticeship Expenses
Auto Expense
Conferences & Travel
Business Meetings

Dues & Subscriptions
Miscellancous
Communications

Bad Debt Expense

Pier Proj NYPA Expense
Pier Proj Sec 108 Note Int Exp
Pier Proj Other Expenses
Pier Depreciation Expense
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Yonkers Industrial Development Agency
Income Statement
For the Twelve Months Ending December 31, 2023

Year to Date Year to Date Variance YeartoDate  Vanance Budget
Thig Year Last Year Qver/(Under) Budget Current Month
s 1,403,394.65 $ 1,035460.14 $ 36793451 $ 3,019,944.00 $ (1,616,549.35)
160,000.00 155,000.00 5,000.00 166,500.00 {6,500.00)
3,000.00 4,300.00 (1,800.00) 3,600.00 (600.00)
56,583.00 169,749.00 (113,166.00) 180,000.00 (123,417.00)
149,419.57 51,295.20 98,124.37 - 149,419.57
2,308.00 13,580.00 (11,272.00) - 2,308.00
974.31 3,156.56 (2,182.25) 1,200.00 (225.69)
1,775,679.53 1,433,040.90 342,638.63 3,371,244.00 {1,595,564.47)
1,319,912.67 1,285,723.69 34,188.98 1,421,794.00 (101,881.33)
3,095,592.20 2,718,764.59 376,827.61 4,793,038.00 (1,697,445.80)
- (11,999.21) 11,999.21 - -
447,586.10 438,299.54 9,286.56 469,910.00 (22,323.90)
157,506.86 147,050.31 10,456.55 147,512.00 9,994.86
36,531.93 34,063.50 2,46843 46,325.00 (9,793.07)
103,586.53 (46,750.23) 150,336.76 48,115.00 55,471.53
2,206.57 2,999.70 (793.13) 2,945.00 (738.43)
5,739.69 5,176.82 562.87 4,676.00 1,063.69
68,056.84 109,034.41 (40,977.57) 183,280.00 (115,223.16)
3,734.76 6,637.69 (2,902.93) 8,400.00 (4,665.24)
5,000.00 - 5,000.00 5,000.00 -
- 3,441.01 (3.441.01) 3,500.00 (3,500.00)
404.00 1,958.64 (1,554.64) - 404.00
1,246.33 3,364.51 (2,118.18) 920.00 326.33
8,727.97 8,985.42 (257.45) 9,960.00 (1,232.03)
5,849.74 5,222.93 626.81 5,994.00 (144.26)
4,652.01 83,942.75 (79,290.74) 180,000.00 (175,347.99)
- 12,500.00 (12,500.00) 75,000.00 (75,000.00)
58,400.00 62,750.00 (4,350.00) 57,500.00 900.00
196,300.00 101,875.00 94,425.00 246,000.00 {49,700.00)
281,081.10 320,649.25 (39,568.15) 392,500.00 (111,418.90)
- - - 150,698.00 (150,698.00)
6,021.60 5,901.60 120.00 6,380.00 (358.40)
14,160.00 150.00 14,010.00 14,200.00 (40.00)
4,974.25 6,074.45 (1,100.20) 11,575.00 (6.600.75)
1,297.67 10,008.18 (2,710.51) 11,400.00 (4,102.33)
79.81 160.51 (80.70) 1,200.00 (1,120.19)
19,336.97 22,818.83 (3,481.86) 23,008.00 (3,671.03)
2,220.00 - 2,220.00 - 2,220.00
6,362.92 6,232.36 130.56 126,732.00 (120,369.08)
17,353.30 19,393.45 (2,040.15) 93,213.00 (75,859.70)
92,413.74 - 92,413.74 100,000.00 (7,586.26)
550,701.00 550,701.00 - - 550,701.00
- 17,791.66 {17,791.66) - -
2,107,531.69 1,928,434.08 179,097.61 2,425,943.00 (318,411.31)
1,052,040.77 1,122,259.63 (70,218.86) 1,050,132.00 1,908.77
80,580.74 4,901.99 75,678.75 122,548.00 (41,967.26)
187,292.19 158,562.32 28,729.87 249,114.00 (61,821.81)
1,319,913.70 1,285,723.94 34,189.76 1,421,794.00 (101,880.30)
3,427,445.39 3,214,158.02 213,287.37 3,847,737.00 (420,291.61)
(331,852.16) (495,393.18) 163,541.02 945,301.00 (1,277,153.16)
(1.03) (0.25) 0.78) - (1.03)
$ (331,853.19) § (495,393.43) §  163,54024 §  945301.00 $ (1,277,154.19)

Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only
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Yonkers Industrial Development Agency
Balance Sheet

December 31, 2023
Current Assets
Cash and equivalents 5,073,225.80
Cash - Restricted - Pier Project 118,460.18
Cash - Workforce Investrent 124,039.14
Accounts Receivable -
Pilot Payment Escrow Account 156,677.54
Accounts Receivable Pending Future Developer Chicken Island 670,000.00
Offset [n event of non-development of Chicken Island {670,000.00)
Accounts Receivable - Pier 96,250.00
for Doubtful A (211,635.00)
A R - 69,734.00
Prepaid Expenses -
Restricted cash - Austin Ave -
Lease Receivable GASB 87 115,385.00
Loan Receivable Larkin Garage- Due from Yonkers Larkin Garage 2,629,000.00
Loan Receivable Larkin Garage- Due from Yonkers Larkin Garage Int 155,061.00
Allowance for Larkin Garage (2,784,061.00)
Total Current Assets 5,542,136.66
Equipment, net $0.00
Pier Leasehold Improvements, net 1,927,458.68 1,927,458.68
Totat Assets 7,469,595.34
Deferred Outflows of F 396,046.00
Total Assets & Deferred Outflows 7,865,641.34
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable/Accrued Liabilities 142,084.39
Accounting Fee Payable 1,950.00
Workforce Acct Payable/Accr Liab 195,416.17
Pier Acct Payable/Accr Liab 7,178.00
Due to City of Yonkers 159,590.00
Family leave payable 11,135.31
Escrow funds Payable -
Escrow Deposits 156,678.00
Duse to other entities -
Deferred Inflow GASB 87 33,244.00
Pier Sec 108 Note Payable 525,000.00
Pier Sec NYPA Loan Payable 31,983.71
CBA Services Payable 38,150.00
Tota! Liabilities 1,302,409.58
Deferred Inflows of Resources 457,876.00
Total Liabilities & Deferred Infiows 1,760,285.58
NET POSITION
Net Invastment in Capital Assets 1,370,474 .97
Pier Project 111,282.18
Unrestricted __$462359861
Total Net Position 6,105,355.76
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Net Position $7.865,641.34
Unaudited - For M 1t Purposes Only
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GL Codes
7005
7007
7010
7200
7190

7085

7098

8000
8050
8100
8125

8150
8175
8190
8200
8250
8255
8300
8400
8450
8500
8510
8530

8550
8650
8750
8775
8800
8850
8900
8925
8950
8976

9200
9210
9220

8025
8192
8195

Revenues

Agency Fees

Management Fecs

Application Fees

Pier License Fee

Interest Earned IDA Savings
Lease Interest Revenue
Repayment from COY
Miscellaneous

Subtotal IDA Revenues
Workforce Grant
Total Revenues

Expenses

Salaries

Rental Expense

Payroll Taxes-FICA
Pension Costs
Depreciation Expense
Payroll Taxes-Ul

Payroll / Tax Processing
Employee Benefits
Office Supplies

Office Fumniture
Equipment

Postage & Delivery
Printing & Reproduction
Appraisal Fees

Insurance

Legal Fees

Public Hearings
Professional Fees

Audit & Accounting Fees
Consulting Fees
Advertising
Pre-Apprenticeship Expenses
Auto Expense
Conferences & Travel
Business Meetings

Dues & Subscriptions
Miscellancous
Communications

Bad Debt Expense

Pier Proj NYPA Expense
Pier Proj Sec 108 Note Int Exp
Pier Proj Other Expenses
Pier Depreciation Expense
COVID Grant Expense

Subtotal IDA Expenses
Workforce Salaries
Workforce-Payroll Related Exp.
Workforce Employee Benefits
Subtotal WIB Expenses

Total Expenses

Net Income IDA
Net Income WIB

Net Income

Yonkers Industrial Development Agency
Income Statement
For the Current Month Ending January 31, 2023

Current Month Current Month Variance Current Month ~ Variance Budget
This Year Last Year Over/(Under) Budget Current Month

- s 5,00000 $ (5.000.00) § - $ -
38,000.00 36,990.00 1,010.00 - 38,000.00

600.00 600.00 - 600.00 -

15,000.00 10,000.00 5,000.00 15,000.00 -
12,374.61 1,012.46 11,362.15 - 12,374.61
65,974.61 53,602.46 12,372.15 15,600.00 50,374.61
(20,603.39) 8,643.56 {29,246.95) 77,535.00 (98,138.39)
45,371.22 62,246.02 (16,874.80) 93,135.00 (47,763.78)
35,927.74 (1,385.68) 37,313.42 36,147.00 (219.26)
9,617.12 . 9,617.12 13,508.00 (3,890.88)
4,125.16 (110.86) 4,236.02 3,563.00 562.16
31,078.12 38,978.00 (7.899.88) - 31,078.12
1,382.07 1,803.94 (421.87) 1,526.00 (143.93)
518.17 455.00 63.17 452.00 66.17
761.31 13,928.74 (13,167.43) 15,445.00 (14,683.69)
573.13 269.39 303,74 700.00 (126.87)
- - - 3,500.00 (3,500.00)
558.64 1,063.65 (505.01) 230.00 328.64
615.74 556.80 5894 830.00 (214.26)
- - - 6,250.00 (6,250.00)

- 2,649.00 (2,649.00) - -
2,554.85 - 2,554.85 15,000.00 (12,445.15)
1,950.00 5,850.00 (3,900.00) 2,000.00 (50.00)
23,150.00 28,150.00 {5.000.00) 41,333.00 (18,183.00)
1,150.00 13,310.00 (12,160.00) 6,000.00 (4,850.00)
805.40 775.40 30.00 845.00 (39.60)
225.00 180.00 45.00 2,850.00 (2,625.00)
256.25 503.00 (246.75) 575.00 (318.75)
40.00 2,201.60 (2,161.60) 550.00 (510.00)
- 140.69 (140.69) 100.00 (100.00)
1,138.77 3,574.41 (2,435.64) 1,309.00 (170.23)

- 10,000.00 (10,000.00) - -
507.32 636.14 (128.82) 10,561.00 {10,053.68)
1,568.30 (8,432.00) 10,000.30 - 1,568.30
- - - 8,333.00 (8,333.00)
118,503.09 115,097.22 3,405.87 171,607.00 (53,103.91)
44,884.62 40,730.82 4,153.80 45,022.00 (137.38)
5,328.53 (92,464.20) 97,792.73 12,385.00 (7.056.47)
59,121.30 40,393.08 18,728.22 20,128.00 38,993.30
109,334.45 (11,340.30) 120,674.75 77,535.00 31,799.45
227,837.54 103,756.92 124,080.62 249,142.00 (21,304.46)
(52,528.48) (61,494.76) 8,966.28 (156,007.00) 103,478.52
(129,937.84) 19,983.86 (149,921.70) - (129,937.84)
(182,466.32) § (41,510.90) $ (140,95542) $§  (156,007.00) $ (26,459.32)

Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only

DRAFT


DRAFT


Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

Balance Sheet
January 31, 2023 D RAFT
ASSETS
Current Assats
Cash and equivalents 4,665,326.29
Cash - Restricted - Pier Project 203,633.37
Cash - Workforce Investment 98,149.78
Pilol Payment Escrow Account 126,881.54
Accounts Receivable 5,000.00
Accounts Receivable Pending Future Developer Chicken Istand 670,000.00
Offget In event of non-development of Chicken Island (670,000.00)
Accounts Receivable - Pier 96,250.00
Allowance for Pier (96,250.00)
- (0.19)
Prepaid Expenses -
Rastricted cash - Austin Ave -
Net Pension Asset 200,851.00
Lease Receivable GASB 87 173,077.00
Loan Receivable Larkin Garage- Due from Yonkers Larkin Garage 2,629,000.00
Loan Receivable Larkin Garage- Due from Yonkers Larkin Garage Int 117,758.00
Allowance for Larkin Garage (2,746,758.00}
Total Current Assets 5472,918.79
Equipment, net $404.68
Pier Leasehold Improvements, net 2,478,159.00 2,478,563.68
Total Assets 7,951,482.47
Deferred Outilows of Resources 460,206.00
Total Assets & Deferred Outflows 8,411,688.47
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable/Accrued Liabilities 150,508.01
Accounting Fees Payable 7.800.00
Rent Payable 37.628.15
Workforce Acct Payable/Accr Liab 188,949.52
Pier Acct Payable/Accr Liab 499.00
Family leave payable 5,667.49
Escrow funds Payable 492
Escrow Deposils 126,882.00
Scholarship Payable -
Dus to other entities -
Deferred Inflow GASB 87 169,748.00
Pier Sec 108 Note Payable 600,000.00
Piar Sec NYPA Loan Payable 144,745.75
CBA Services Payable 35,800.00
Total Liabilities 1,468,332.84
Defarred Inflows of Resources 688,613.00
Total Liabllities & Deferred Inflows 2,156,945.84
N ITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,733,817.93
Pier Project 203,134.37
Unrestricted —$4.317,79033
Total Net Position 6,264,742 .63
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Net Position $8,411,688.47

Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only
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City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

Report to the Audit Committee
December 31, 2023

April 15, 2024

Robert Daniele, Partner
rdaniele@pkfod.com
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April 15, 2024

Board of Directors
City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

We are in the process of completing our audit of the financial statements of the City of Yonkers
Industrial Development Agency (“Agency”) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Professional standards require us to communicate with you regarding audit matters that are, in our
professional judgment, significant and relevant to those charged with governance (“TCWG”) in
overseeing the financial reporting process. This communication is intended to provide you with
these required communications as well as other findings and information regarding our audit.

We are pleased to be of service to you and the Agency and appreciate the opportunity to present
our audit findings to you and discuss other matters which may be of interest to you.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of the
Agency and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

Very truly yours,

PKE O CGanp, Danas, LLP

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP

PKF O'CONNOR DAVIES, LLP
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528 | Tel: 914.381.8900 | Fax: 914.381.8910 | www.pkfod.com

PKF O'Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF Intemational Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility or
liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms.



N PKF

OCONNOR
DAVIES

ACCOUNTANTS AND ADVISORS

Contents

Status of the Audit and Other Services/Audit Approach..............ccccooiiiiiiiiiiee e 1
Financial Statement Highlights ..............cooiiiiiiii et 2
Required Communications and Other Matters................ccccoviiiiiiiiiiiiii e 4
Communication of Internal Control Matters .............ccccciviieiiiiiiiiiieeeeree e e 9
Management Representation Letter ...t 11

About PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP



OCONNOR
DAVIES

ACCOUNTANTS AND ADVISORS

Status of the Audit and Other Services

Audit of Financial Statements

e Audit fieldwork is complete. The scope of our fieldwork was substantially the same as
described in our audit planning communications.
« The financial statements have been drafted and reviewed by management.
e We anticipate that we will be issuing an unmodified opinion on the financial statements upon
completion of all outstanding audit related items.
o Public Authorities and Accountability Act documents
o Final approval of the financial statements by the Agency
= Independent Auditors’ Report
= Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Audit Approach

Design
integrated
audit plan

o Evaluate design of controls
o Develop testing plan

Unexpected results  Adjust

Execute plan

Expected resuilts

o Required communications
e Test controls o Intemal control findings
o Test transactions and accounts
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COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

2023 2022
ASSETS
Cash and equivalents $ 5073226 $ 4,779,542
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for uncollectible
amounts of $96,250 at December 31, 2023 and 2022 69,734 146,450
Loan receivable, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts of
of $2,784,061 at December 31, 2023 and $2,746,758
at December 31, 2022 (Note 3) - -
Lease receivable, net of allowance
of $115,385 at December 31, 2023 - 173,077
Restricted cash 399,177 359,564
5,542,137 5,458,633
Non-current assets
Net pension asset - ERS - 200,851
Capital assets being depreciated, net 1,927,458 2,478,563
Total Non-Current Assets 1,927,458 2,679,414
Total Assets 7,469,595 8,138,047
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related 396,046 460,206
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 78,062 113,102
Accrued expenses 279,703 271,996
Escrow deposits 156,678 126,882
Due to other governments 159,590 -
Due to other entities 38,150 35,905
Non-current liabilities
Loans payable, due within one year 131,984 208,416
Loans payable, due in more than one year 425,000 546,384
Net pension liability 457 876 -
Total Liabilities 1,727,043 1,302,685
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Lease related - 169,748
Pension related 33,244 688,613
33,244 858,361
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 1,370,474 1,723,763
Restricted
Yonkers Pier activities 111,282 200,210
Unrestricted 4,623,598 4,513,234

Total Net Position $ 6,105,354 § 6,437,207
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Financial Statement Highlights (Continued)
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

2023 2022
OPERATING REVENUES
Agency and refinancing fees $ 1,403,395 $ 1,035,460
Management administration fees 160,000 155,000
Application fees 3,000 4,800
License fee 56,583 169,749
Miscellaneous income 974 15,158
Total Operating Revenues 1,623,952 1,380,167
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries 447 586 438,300
Payroll taxes and employee benefits 210,383 99,348
Rent 157,507 147,050
Consulting and professional fees 357,506 266,245
Advertising, printing and reproduction 289,809 329,634
Travel 6,022 5,902
Insurance 5,850 5,223
Conferences and meetings 19,134 6,224
Communications 27,881 36,192
Office supplies and other 11,034 10,241
Depreciation 551,105 552,660
Emergency disaster relief grants - 17,792
Total Operating Expenses 2,083,817 1,914,811
Loss from Operations (459,865) (534,644)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Workforce investment grant income 1,319,913 1,285,724
Workforce investment grant expenses (1,319,913) (1,285,724)
Interest income 151,728 64,875
Interest expense (23,716) (25,625)
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses), net 128,012 39,250
Change in Net Position (331,853) (495,394)
NET POSITION
Beginning of Year 6,437,207 6,932,601

End of Year $ 6,105,354 § 6,437,207
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Required Communications and Other Matters

Required Item Comments

Auditor’s responsibility We have communicated such information in our engagement letter
under professional lo you dated November 15, 2023. Generally, these responsibilities
standards and planned include:
sopplanditimingofithe ,  Forming and expressing an opinion on the financial
audit b f ;
statements.
Obtaining reasonable assurance the financial statements
are free of material misstatements, whether caused by error
or fraud.
Accumulating and communicating uncorrected
misstatements to TCWG.
Maintaining professional skepticism.
Communicating audit related matters that are, in our
professional judgment, significant to TCWG.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on
the financial statements that collectively comprise the Agency's
basic financial statements. The supplementary information is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Supplementary information
accompanying the
financial statements

 With respect to such supplementary information, we made certain
inquiries of members of management and evali d the form,
content and methods of preparing the information to determine that
the information complies with US GAAP, the method of preparing it |

Dther Supplementary
information accompanying
the financial statements

has not changed from the prior period, and the information is
appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial
statements. We compared and reconciled the r-'i'I_t]gﬂ:h"r!-lrli-lr_f'}
information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.




Required Item

Our responsibilities under
the Yellow Book

Responsibilities of
management and TCWG

Qualitative aspects of
accounting practices -
Accounting Policies

D PKF
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Comments
In connection with our audit, we performed tests of the Agency's
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants. However, the objective of our tests was not to provide
an opinion on compliance with such provisions.

Management's responsibilities include:

The fair presentation of the financial statements, including the
selectio appropriate accounting policies. '
Establishing and maintaining effective internal control.

Complying with laws, regulations, grants and contracts.

Providing the auditors with all financial records and related
information and a signed representation letter.

Evaluate if there are any conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate that raise substantial doubt about the Agency's ability
lo continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the |
financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.
Setting the proper tone at the top. '
Designing and implementing policies and controls to prevent
and detect fraud.

TCWG are responsible for communicating with the auditors and
overseeing the financial reporting process |

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate
accounting policies. The significant accounting policies are
described in Note 2 to the financial statements. No new accounting
policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was
not changed during the year, except for the adoption of the
provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement
No. 96, “Subscription-Based Information Technology
Arrangements”. The Agency evaluated the impact of the statement
and determined the amounts were not material to the financial
statements.

The accounting policies of the Agency conform to U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles as applicable to state and local
governments. The Agency's reports are based on all applicable
GASB pronouncements.

We noted no transactions entered into by the Agency during the
year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or
consensus.

All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.
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Required Item Comments

Qualitative aspects of o matters have come to our attention that would require us to

accoul thf] ;lt--v;ﬂ es nform about the methods used to account for significant
Significant Unusual unusual transactions
fransaction:

Accounting estimates made by management are an integral part of
the financial statements and are based on management’s
knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Qualitative aspects of
accounting practices -
Accounting Estimates and
Management’s Judgment

Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of
their significance to financial statements and their susceptibility to
change, such as estimates of certain receivable balances and
certain operating and long-term liabilities. The most sensitive
estimates affecting the Agency'’s financial statements were:

e Actuarial assumptions and proportionate share calculations
related to pension liabilities
Asset lives for depreciable capital assets
Estimates of certain receivable balances and aliowances for
uncollectible amounts

o Estimates for certain operating and long-term liabilities

Management believes that the estimates used and assumptions
made are adequate based on the information currently available.
We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the
estimates in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.

Qualitative aspects of Certain financial statement disclosures involve si cant judgment |
accounting practices and are ticularly sensitive because of their significance to
Financial Statement financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosure affecting
Disclosures the financial statements are:

Note 2 which summarizes significant accounting policies

Note 7 which summarizes long-term liabilities including pension !
obligation:

The financial statement disclosures are consistent and clear
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2 unired Item | Cments

Going concern The auditor is required to communicate with TCWG events or

| conditions that, when considered in the aggregate; indicate a
substantial doubt about the Agency's ability to continue as a going
“concern for a reasonable period of time.

| We concur with management's assessment that the Agency will

| continue as a going concern for one year from the balance sheet
date.

Management override of int

_ : | iforementioned
designed'to & have used risk of material

Difficulties encountered in | We encountered no significant difficuities in dealing with
performing the audit | management relating to the performance of our audit.

Y

s require us to accumulate all known and
tements identified during the ., other than thos
believe are trivial, and communicate them to the app
el O mar (.ltg;!:,|..|‘§i’

priate

aquired to communicate to you misstatements that remain
prior periods, and the effect, if
| IN our repot ind request

uch financial

addition, we are required to communicate to y:
¢ misstatements that were brought to
management as a sult of our auc roceatul

i brought to the attention ol

re also included ir
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Required Item Comments

Disagreements with
management

Management

representations
Management’s

consultations with other
accountants

Auditor independence

Significant issues
discussed with
management prior to
retention

the audit.

For purposes of this communication, a disagreement with
management is a matter, whether or not resolved to our
satisfaction, concerning financial accounting, reporting, or auditing,
which could be significant to the financial statements or the
auditors’ report. No such disagreements arose during the course of

We have requested certain representations from management that
are included in the management representation letter.

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other
accountants about auditing and accounting matters. Management
informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no such
consultations with other accountants.

We affirm that PKF O'Connor Davies, LLP is independent with
spect to the Agency in accordance with relevant professional
standards. ' |

We generally discuss with management a variety of matters,
including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, business conditions affecting the Entity and business
plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material
misstatement. None of the matters discussed and our responses
thereto were a condition to our retention as auditors.
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Communication of Internal Control Matters
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Communication of Internal Control Matters Identified in the Audit to
Those Charged with Governance and Management

Board of Directors
City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the City of Yonkers Industrial
Development Agency (“Agency”) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Agency's
internal control over financial reporting (“internal control”) as a basis for designing our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the Entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be deficiencies, significant
deficiencies, or material weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that all such
deficiencies have been identified.

We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses,
as defined above.

This communication is intended for the information and use of management and the Board of
Directors and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

%fﬂ@mwzﬁmﬂlﬁ7
PKF O'Connor Davies, LLP
Harrison, New York

April 15, 2024

PKF O'CONNOR DAVIES, LLP
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528 | Tel: 914.381.8900 | Fax: 914.381.8910 | www.pkfod.com

PKF O'Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF Intemational Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility or
liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms.
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April 15, 2024

PKF O'Connor Davies, LLP
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Suite 301
Harrison, New York 10528

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the
City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency (“Agency”) which comprise the statements of net
position as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related statements of activities and cash flows
for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, for the purpose of
expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material
respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (U.S. GAAP).

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.
ltems are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of
accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the
judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by the
omission or misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in amount could be
considered material as a result of qualitative factors.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, (having made such inquiries as we considered
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves) as of the date of this letter, the
following representations made to you during your audit.

Our Responsibilities

o We acknowledge that we have fulfilled our responsibilities as set forth in the terms of the

engagement latter dated November 15, 2023:

o The preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with US
GAAP and include all properly classified funds and other financial information of the primary
government required by generally accepted accounting principles to be included in the
financial reporting entity.

o The design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; and

o The design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

e We understand that the term “fraud” refers to intentional acts by one or more individuals among
management, those charged with governance, employees, or third parties, involving the use of
deception that results in a misstatement in financial statements. Two types of intentional
misstatements are relevant to your audit — misstatements resulting from fraudulent financial
reporting and misstatements resulting from misappropriation of assets. Fraudulent financial
reporting involves intentional misstatements, including omissions of amounts or disclosures in
financial statements to deceive financial statement users. Misappropriation of assets involves
the theft of an entity’s assets.

12
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In regard to the financial statement preparation non-attest services performed by you, we have:

o Assumed all management responsibilities.

o Designated individuals within senior management, who have suitable skill, knowledge, or
experience to oversee the services.

o Evaluated the adequacy and results of the services performed.

o Accepted responsibility for the result of the services.

We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the financial statements and supplemental
schedules in accordance with US GAAP, and we believe the financial statements and
supplemental schedules, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with
US GAAP. The methods of measurement and presentation of the financial statements and
supplemental schedules have not changed from those used in the prior period, and we have
disclosed to you any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement and
presentation of the supplementary information.

Financial Statements

The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with US GAAP and

include all disclosures necessary for such fair presentation. In that connection, we specifically

confirm that:

o The Agency's accounting policies, and the practices and methods followed in applying them,
are appropriate and are as disclosed in the financial statements.

o There have been no changes during the period audited in the Agency’s accounting policies
and practices.

o All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in
the financial statements.

Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, including those measured at
fair value, are reasonable.

The following, where they exist, have been appropriately disclosed to you and accounted for

and/or disclosed in the financial statements in accordance with the requirements of US GAAP:

o The identity of all related parties and related party relationships and transactions including
revenues, expenditures/expenses, loans, transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees,
and amounts receivable from or payable to related parties.

o Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the Agency is contingently liable, if any.

o The effects of all known actual, possible, pending or threatened litigation, claims, and
assessments.

We have evaluated events subsequent to the date of the financial statements through the date
of this letter, and no such events have occurred which would require adjustment or disclosure in
the financial statements. No events, including instances of noncompliance, have occurred
subsequent to the balance sheet date and through the date of this letter that would require
adjustment to or disclosure in the aforementioned financial statements.

We are in agreement with the adjusting journal entries you have proposes and they have been
posted to the Agency’s accounts.

13
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information Provided

We have provided you with:

o Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, and other matters.

o Communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or deficiencies
in, financial reporting practices, if applicable.

o Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit.

o Unrestricted access to persons within the Agency from whom you determined it necessary
to obtain audit evidence.

o Completeness and availability of all minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors, or
summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared.

o All significant contracts an agreements

o All documents and records provided electronically are accurate and complete reproductions
of the original documents and records.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements
may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. Based on our assessment, we did not identify
any fraud risks that we believe would result in a material misstatement of the financial
statements.

There are no deficiencies in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
that are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Agency’s ability to initiate, authorize, record,
process, and report financial data reliably in accordance with US GAAP.

We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the Agency and involves:
o Management,

o Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or

o Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Agency's
financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators, or others.

We have no knowledge of instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or abuse, whose effects should
be considered when preparing financial statements.

Hosting Services

We acknowledge that electronic portals used during the audit are only a method of transferring
data and the data may be deleted by you at any time.

We are responsible for maintaining our financial and non-financial information, licensing and
hosting of any applications, and downloading and retaining anything you uploaded to such
portal in a timely manner.

14
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Government—specific

We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations.

We have identified to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other studies
related to the objectives of the audit and whether related recommendations have been
implemented.

We have identified to you any investigations or legal proceedings that have been initiated with
respect to the period under audit.

The Agency has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or
classification of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
or net position.

We have provided our views on reported findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well
as our planned corrective actions, for the report.

We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and
grant agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts, and legal and
contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds.

We have identified and disclosed to you all instances of identified and suspected fraud and
noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements that we
believe have a material effect on the financial statements.

There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations
(including those pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of
contracts and grant agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose
effects should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements, or as a basis for
recording a loss contingency, or for reporting on noncompliance.

As part of your audit, you assisted with preparation of the financial statements and related notes.
We acknowledge our responsibility as it relates to those non-audit services, including that we
assume all management responsibilities; oversee the services by designating an individual,
preferably with senior management, who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, or experience;
evaluate the adequacy and results of the services performed; and accept responsibility for the
results of the services We have reviewed, approved, and accepted responsibility for those
financial statements and related notes.

The Agency has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances
on such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.

The Agency has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material
effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

We have followed all applicable laws and regulations in adopting, approving, and amending
budgets.

The Agency is not part of any joint ventures with an equity interest.

The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities in accordance with GASB
Statement No. 34, as amended.

15
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We have identified the Agency is not a component unit of the City of Yonkers, New York in
accordance with the criteria enumerated in GASB Statement No. 61 “The Financial reporting
Entity: Omnibus and amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34".

Components of net position (net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted) are
properly classified and, if applicable, approved.

Receivables and loan receivable recorded in the financial statements represent valid claims
against debtors for transactions arising on or before the balance sheet date and have been
reduced to their estimated net realizable value.

Provisions for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded.

Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the
statement of activities, and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis.

Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in
net position within operating revenues and non-operating expenses.

The Agency does not offer other post employment benefits.

We believe that the actuarial assumptions and methods used to measure pension liabilities and
costs for financial accounting purposes are appropriate in the circumstances.

Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activities within program revenues and
general revenues.

The Agency is a single fund entity with no internal activity.
Deposits and investment securities are properly classified as to risk and are properly disclosed.

Capital assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, if any, are properly capitalized,
reported, and, if applicable, depreciated or amortized.

Capital assets, including intangible assets, have been evaluated for impairment as a result of
significant and unexpected decline in service utility. There were no such impairment loss or
insurance recoveries.

The Agency has agreements that meet the definition of subscription-based information
technology agreements (“SBITAs”) contained in GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based
Information Technology Arrangements (SBITA'’s). However the total value of the agreements for
the year ended December 31, 2023 was deemed immaterial, therefore, the related amounts and
disclosures have been excluded from these financial statements.

The Agency has agreements that me the definition of leases contained in GASB Statement No.
87, “Leases”. The Lease receivable and related deferred inflow was recorded in the prior year.
Because the Lessee has filed for bankruptcy and future payments are uncertain an allowance
was recorded for the unpaid portion of lease revenue through December 31, 2023.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RSI). The RSl is
measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of measurement and
presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period. We have disclosed to you
any significant assumptions and interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation
of the RSI.

16



D PKE

OCONNOR
DAVIES

ACCOUNTANTS AND ADVISORS

e Expenditures of federal awards were below the $750,000 threshold for the year ended
December 31, 2023, and we were not required to have an audit in accordance with Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance”).

Very truly yours,

The Honorable Ms. Cecile Singer
Chairperson

Ms. Jaime McGill
Executive Director

Ms. Siby Oommen
Chief Fiscal Officer

17



D PKF

OCONNOR
DAVIES

ACCOUNTANTS AND ADVISORS

About PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP

18



PKF

OCONNOR
DAVIES

ACCOUNTANTS AND ADVISORS

Founded in 18981, PKF O’Connor Davies has evolved from a regional accounting
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dbt'rtsanyM\emlhmewoddasmeirmedsmdhelr “Top Tax Firm”
businesses continue to evoive. Accounting Today, 2023
PROACTIVE SERVICE MODEL, Hanied 5 ofhe STop Drs i the
i antic”’
ENGAGED PARTNER BASE Accounting Today, 2023
With a proven, proactive service model and an
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our clients. Ranked 10 of the 50 “Best Accounting
Employers to Work for in North America”
Our Partners are actively involved in the day-to- vault’g024
day management of engagements, ensuring a Ranked #1 in Three Diversity Categories
high degree of dlient service and cost effectiveness. Vault, 2024
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KNOW GREATER VALUE :
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and our Firm. PKF O’'Connor Davies curently ranks 25th
on Accounting Today’s 2023" “Top 100 Firms” list and “Best Accounting Firm in Westchester”
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growing firms. With more professionals, in more places every “Best Places to Work in New Jersey”
day, our teams are on the ground, at the ready and in the know. NJBIZ, 2023

As the world changes, PKF O'Connor Davies dlients will always
Know Greater Value.
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At PKF O'Connor Davies we maintain a relentless commitment to understanding
each dlient's operations and financial history so we can uncover every challenge,
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LLP is a foansed CPA fim that provides atiest services and PKF O'Connor Devies Advisary LLC and Its subsidiary entities provide tax and advisary
services. PKF O'Connor Davies is a member of the PIF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility
or llabiRty for the actions or inactions on the part of any other Individual member firm or firms.

PRF
OCONNOR
DAVIES

ACCOUNTANTS AND AOVISOAS

pkfod.com

20



City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency
Financial Statements
and Supplementary Information
With Report of Independent Auditors

December 31, 2023 and 2022



City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

Table of Contents

Independent Auditors’ Report
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Comparative Statement of Net Position
Comparative Statement of Activities
Comparative Statement of Cash Flows
Notes to Financial Statements
Required Supplementary Information
New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System
Schedule of the Agency’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset)
Schedule of Contributions
Other Supplementary Information
Schedule of Indebtedness — Bonds and Notes
Schedule of Straight-Lease Transactions Executed in 2023
Schedule of Payments in Lieu of Taxes
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an

Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance
with Government Auditing Standards

Page No.

10

26

26

27

29

30

33



N PKF

OCONNOR
DAVIES

ACCOUNTANTS AND ADVISORS

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors of the
City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency (“Agency”)
as of and for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Agency's financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Agency as of December. 31, 2023 and 2022 and the changes in
financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (“GAAS") and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General.of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are required to.be independent of the Agency, and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe
that the audit evidence we. have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Agency's ability to continue
as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

PKF O'CONNOR DAVIES, LLP
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528 | Tel: 914.381.8900 | Fax: 914.381.8910 | www.pkfod.com

PKF O'Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF Intemational Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility or liability
for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms.



Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting.policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Agency's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management's
Discussion and Analysis be presented to supplement the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and, although not a part of the financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.



Other Supplementary Information

Management is responsible for the other supplementary information included in the annual financial
report. The other supplementary information consists of the Schedule of Indebtedness — Bonds and
Notes, Schedule of Straight-Lease Transactions Executed in 2023 and the Schedule of Payments in Lieu
of Taxes but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. Our opinion on
the financial statements does not cover the other supplementary information, and we do not express an
opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
supplementary information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other
supplementary information and the financial statements, or the other supplementary information
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an
uncorrected material misstatement of the other supplementary information exists, we are required to
describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated , 2024
on our consideration of the Agency's intemal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant.agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,7and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Agency's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Agency’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance:

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP
Harrison, New York
, 2024



City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2023

The following Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") of the City of Yonkers Industrial
Development Agency's ("YIDA") or ("Agency") activities and financial performance is provided
as an introduction and overview of the financial statements of YIDA for the year ended
December 31, 2023. Management's Discussion and Analysis is Required Supplementary
Information specified in the Government Accounting Standards Board (“GASB") Statement No.
34. Following this MD&A are the annual financial statements of YIDA together with the notes to
financial statements which are important to understanding the data presented in the financial
statements. This MD&A highlights certain supplementary information to assist with the
understanding of the YIDA's financial operations.

Operations

YIDA is a public benefit corporation established by an act of the New York State Legislature in
1982, under Section 903 of the General Municipal Law. The Agency operates for the benefit of
the City of Yonkers, New York (“City”) and its populace to accomplish any or all of the purposes
specified in Title 1 of Article 18A. Specific powers and duties are conferred to the Agency with
respect to the acquisition of real property, whether by purchase, condemnation or otherwise,
within the corporate limits of the City. All of the local zoning and planning regulations, as well as
the regional and local comprehensive land use plans, are taken into consideration to carry out
the duties of the Agency.

Organized in a manner consistent with the statute, the. Mayor of the City appoints a seven
member Board of Directors comprised.of both public officials and business leaders. This Board
governs the YIDA by establishing official policies and reviewing and approving requests for
financial assistance. Operations and activities of the Agency, its members, officers and
employees are carried out in accordance with State law.

YIDA's mission includes undertaking projects and programmatic initiatives in furtherance of and
to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people
of the City and to improve their recreational opportunities, prosperity and standard of living.
YIDA works to create economic development and job growth throughout the City by attracting
new businesses, retaining existing ones and helping them all become more competitive in a
global marketplace. The Agency accomplishes this mission by offering financial assistance in
the form of Sales and Use Tax Exemptions, Mortgage Recording Tax Exemptions and
Payment-In-Lieu-of-Tax agreements (“PILOTs") and by issuing tax exempt Industrial
Development Bonds (“IDB's").

Fourteen applications were submitted and processed during the year and two projects closed.

Financial Operations Highlights

The financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 are attached. The
chart below provides a condensed summary of revenues and expenses for the current and prior
year.

2023 2022
Operating Revenues $ 1,623,952 $ 1,380,167
Operating Expenses 2,083,817 1,914,811
3



City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency
Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2023

Financial Operations Highlights (continued)

Operating Revenues
Revenues for 2023 were derived from 7 projects and as follows:

Project Agency Fees:

1. Wheeler Block 63,881
2. St. Clair Development 315,177
3. Monastery Manor 94,425
4. 70 Pier 91,194
5. Mary the Queen 224,483
6. 155 Elliot LLC 27,765
7. WY Manor 421,970
$1,238,895
Other Agency Fees:

Sales Tax Exemption Only 124,500
Consent Fees 7,500
Transfer of Title Fees 10,000
Administrative Fees 12,500
Termination Fees 10,000
$ 164,500

Annual Management Fees:
Billable Projects 80,000
Larkin Management Fees 80,000
$160,000
Application Fees (5): $ 3,000

1. Verus Development — 345 McLean
2. 1111 Central Park Avenue

3. 155 Elliot LLC

4. Main Street Lofts

5. Yonkers BV AMS

License Fee:
Pier Lease $ 56,583
Miscellaneous Income: $ 974

Total: $1.623.952



City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2023

Financial Operations Highlights (continued)

Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and
Net Position

At December 31, 2023, the Agency had $7,469,595 in assets (cash, restricted cash,
receivables, prepaid expenses, loan receivable and capital assets, etc.), $396,046 in deferred
outflows of resources, $1,727,043 in liabilities (accounts payable, accrued expenses, due to
other governments, loan payables, pension liability, etc.), $33.244 in deferred inflows of
resources and $6,105,354 in net position. The largest component of the Agency’s net position
is its investment in capital assets (mainly the leasehold improvements transferred from the
Yonkers Pier Development, Inc. and Subsidiary), less any related debt used to acquire those
assets that is still outstanding. The net investment in capital assets totaled $1,370,474. These
assets are not available for future spending. Although the Agency’s investment in its capital
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that resources needed to repay this
debt must be provided from other sources, since the.capital assets themselves cannot be used
to liquidate these liabilities. Assets restricted for specific purposes amounted to $111,282 for
the Yonkers Pier activities. The balance of $4,623,598 is unrestricted. Details of these amounts
are provided in the Statement of Net Position.

Required Supplementary Information

The Schedule of the Agency’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, New York State
and Local Employee’'s Retirement System is presented in accordance with the provisions of
GASB Statement No. 68 “Accounting and. Financial Reporting for Pensions” and GASB
Statement No. 71, “Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement
Date” - An amendment of GASB Statement No. 68.

Supplementary Information

The Schedules of Indebtedness < Bonds and Notes, Straight-Lease Transactions and Payments
in Lieu of Taxes is provided as supplementary information to the financial statements.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Agency’s finances for all
those with an interest in the Agency finances. Questions and comments concerning any
information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to
the Chief Fiscal Officer, Yonkers Industrial Development Agency, 470 Nepperhan Avenue, Suite
200, Yonkers, New York 10701.



City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

Comparative Statement of Net Position
December 31,

ASSETS

Cash and equivalents

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for uncollectible
amounts of $96,250 at December 31, 2023 and 2022

Loan receivable, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts of
of $2,784,061 at December 31, 2023 and $2,746,758
at December 31, 2022 (Note 3)

Lease receivable, net of allowance
of $115,385 at December 31, 2023

Restricted cash

Non-current assets
Net pension asset - ERS
Capital assets being depreciated, net

Total Non-Current Assets

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Escrow deposits

Due to other governments

Due to other entities

Non-current liabilities
Loans payable, due within one year
Loans payable, due in more than one year
Net pension liability

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Lease related
Pension related

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted

Yonkers Pier activities
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

See notes to financial statements

2023 2022
$ 5073226 $ 4,779,542
69,734 146,450
- 173,077
399,177 359,564
5,542,137 5,458,633
- 200,851
1,927,458 2,478,563
1,927,458 2,679,414
7,469,595 8,138,047
396,046 460,206
78,062 113,102
279,703 271,996
156,678 126,882
159,590 -
38,150 35,905
131,984 208,416
425,000 546,384
457,876 -
1,727,043 1,302,685
- 169,748
33,244 688,613
33,244 858,361
1,370,474 1,723,763
111,282 200,210
4,623,598 4,513,234
$ 6105354 $ 6,437,207




City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

Comparative Statement of Activities
Year Ended December 31,

OPERATING REVENUES
Agency and refinancing fees
Management administration fees
Application fees

License fee

Miscellaneous income

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries

Payroll taxes and employee benefits
Rent

Consulting and professional fees
Advertising, printing and reproduction
Travel

insurance

Conferences and meetings
Communications

Office supplies and other
Depreciation

Emergency disaster relief grants

Total Operating Expenses

Loss from Operations

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Workforce investment grant income
Workforce investment grant expenses
Interest income

Interest expense

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses), net

Change in Net Position

NET POSITION
Beginning of Year

End of Year

See notes to financial statements

2023 2022
1,403,395 $ 1,035,460
160,000 155,000
3,000 4,800
56,583 169,749
974 15,158
1,623,952 1,380,167
447,586 438,300
210,383 99,348
157,507 147,050
357,506 266,245
289,809 329,634
6,022 5,902
5,850 5,223
19,134 6,224
27,881 36,192
11,034 10,241
551,105 552,660
- 17,792
2,083,817 1,914,811
(459,865) (534,644)
1,319,913 1,285,724
(1,319,913) (1,285,724)
151,728 64,875
(23,716) (25,625)
128,012 39,250
(331,853) (495,394)
6,437,207 6,932,601
6,105,354 $ 6,437,207




City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

Comparative Statements of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31,

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from agency and other fees $
Cash received from workforce grant

Cash payments for workforce employees

Cash payments for goods and services

Cash payments for salaries and benefits

Net Cash from Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of loans payable

Repayment of Emergency Disaster Relief Program loans

Interest paid

Net Cash from Capital and Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income

Net Change in Cash and Equivalents

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
Beginning of year

End of year $

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
Cash and equivalents $
Restricted cash

Total Cash and Equivalents $

RECONCILIATION OF LOSS FROM OPERATIONS
TO NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss from operations $
Adjustments to reconcile loss from operations
to net cash from operating activities
Depreciation
Accounts receivable
Lease receivable
Prepaid expenses
Deferred outflows of resources
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Escrow deposits
Due to other governments
Due to other entities
Deferred inflows of resources
Net pension liability (asset)

Net Cash from Operating Activities $

2023 2022
1731573 $ 1,381,178
1,319,913 1,285,724

(1,319,913) (1,285,724)

(745,728) (812,653)
(582,744) (601,786)
403,101 (33,261)
(197,816) (184,925)
- 243,208
(23,716) (25,625)
(221,532) 32,658
151,728 64,875
333,297 64,272
5,139,106 5,074,834
5472403 $ 5,139,106
5073226 $ 4,779,542
399,177 359,564
5472403 $ 5,139,106
(459,865) $  (534,644)
551,105 552,660
76,716 4,283
173,077 (173,077)
- 9,229
64,160 82,612
(35,040) 36,609
7,707 15,666
29,796 57
159,590 -
2,245 (33,988)
(825,117) 210,372
658,727 (203,040)
403,01 §$  (33,261)

See notes to financial statements



City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2023 and 2022

Note 1 - Organization and Purpose

The City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency (“YIDA") or ("Agency") was created in 1982 as a public
benefit corporation by the New York State Legislature under the provisions of Chapter 83 for the purpose of
promoting and supporting the development of commerce, bolstering employment and stimulating economic
growth and prosperity in the City of Yonkers, New York (“City”). The Agency is exempt from Federal, State
and local income taxes. The Agency, although supported by the City, is a separate entity and operates
independently from the City. Members of the governing board are appointed by the Mayor of the City for
specified terms.

Financial Reporting Entity

The Agency has been identified as an organization related to the City. In accordance with the criteria
enumerated in Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Statement No. 61 “The Financial
Reporting Entity: Omnibus — an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 35", the Agency is not
considered a component unit of the City.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

The accounting policies of the Agency conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to
governmental units. GASB is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting
and financial reporting principles. The Agency reports its operations on the accrual basis of accounting.
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at
the time liabilities are incurred.

The Agency distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the Agency’s principal
ongoing operation. The principal operating revenues of the Agency are agency, refinancing, application,
license and management and administrative fees. Operating expenses include salaries, depreciation,
contractual costs and professional fees. All revenues and expenses not meeting the definition are reported
as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Cash and Equivalents, Investments and Risk Disclosure

Cash and Equivalents - Cash and equivalents consist of funds deposited in demand deposit
accounts, time deposit accounts and short-term investments with original maturities of less than
three months from the date of acquisition.

The Agency's deposit and investment policies are governed by State statutes. The Agency has
adopted its own written investment policy which provides for the deposit of funds in FDIC insured
commercial banks or trust companies located within the State. The Agency is authorized to use
demand deposits, time deposit accounts and certificates of deposit.

Collateral is required for these deposits at 102% of all deposits not covered by Federal deposit
insurance. The Agency has entered into a custodial agreement with its depository which holds its
deposits. This agreement authorizes the obligations that may be pledged as collateral. Such
obligations include among other instruments, obligations of the United States and its agencies and
obligations of the State and its municipal and school district subdivisions.
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City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2023 and 2022

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments - Permissible investments include obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. Agencies,
repurchase agreements and obligations of New York State or its political subdivisions.

The Agency follows the provisions of GASB Statement No. 72, “Fair Value Measurement and
Application”, which defines fair value and establishes a fair value hierarchy organized into three
levels based upon the input assumptions used in pricing assets. Level 1 inputs have the highest
reliability and are related to assets with unadjusted quoted prices in active markets. Level 2 inputs
relate to assets with other than quoted prices in active markets which may include quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities or other inputs which can be corroborated by observable market data.
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs and are used to the extent that observable inputs do not
exist.

Risk Disclosure

Interest Rate Risk - Interest rate risk is the risk that the entity will incur losses in fair value
caused by changing interest rates. The Agency does not have a formal investment policy that
limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from
changing interest rates. Generally, the Agency does not invest in any long-term investment
obligations. :

Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
Agency’'s deposits may not be returned to it. GASB Statement No. 40, “Deposit and Investment
Risk Disclosures — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 3, directs that deposits be disclosed as
exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance and the deposits are
either uncollateralized, collateralized by securities held by the pledging financial institution or
collateralized by securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department but not in the
Agency’s name. The Agency's aggregate bank balances that were not covered by depository
insurance were not exposed to custodial credit risk at December 31, 2023 and 2022.

Credit Risk - Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty will not fulfill its specific
obligation even without the entity’s complete failure. The Agency does not have a formal credit
risk policy other than restrictions to obligations allowable under General Municipal Law of the
State of New York.

Concentration of Credit Risk - Concentration of credit risk is the risk attributed to the magnitude
of an entity’s investments in a single issuer. The Agency's investment policy limits the amount on
deposit at each of its banking institutions.

Allowance for Uncollectible Receivables

Management provides for an allowance for uncollectible receivables based on a combination of write-off
history, aging analysis and any specific known amounts. (See Note 3).
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City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2023 and 2022

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Capitalization and Depreciation

Fumiture and fixtures are recorded at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed
using the straight-line method over an estimated useful life of seven years. Leasehold improvements are
recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided in amounts sufficient to relate the cost of depreciable assets to
operations over their estimated service lives using the straight-line method. Costs incurred in relation to
development of the project for interest, property taxes and insurance are capitalized only during periods in
which activities necessary to prepare the property for its intended use are in progress. Expenditures for
maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. The estimated service life of the leasehold
improvements is 20 years.

Escrow Deposits

Escrow deposits represent security deposits for Payments in Lieu of Tax (“PILOT") agreements and
represent one year of the executed PILOT payment. These payments are to increase each year as the
PILOT progresses to “full taxes”. The funds must be deposited into a separate interest-bearing account.
At the end of the PILOT agreement, the funds are to be returned to the respective companies along with
any interest eared as long as such companies have not defaulted on the PILOT agreement. The Agency
has reported escrow deposits of $156,678 and $126,882 as of December 31, 2023 and 2022.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position includes a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element represents a consumption of net assets that applies
to a future period and so will not be recognized as-an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until
then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position includes a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net assets that applies
to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Agency has reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources in relation to its pension obligations. These amounts are detailed in the discussion of
the Agency'’s pension plan in Note 8. As of December 31, 2022, the Agency reported lease related deferred
inflows of $169,748.

Lease Receivable

The Agency is a lessor for a noncancellable lease of rental space. The Agency recognizes a lease
receivable and a deferred inflow of resources in the financial statements.

At the commencement of a lease, the Agency initially measures the lease receivable at the present value
of payments expected to be received during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease receivable is reduced
by the principal portion of lease payments received. The deferred inflow of resources is initially measured
as the initial amount of the lease receivable, adjusted for lease payments received at or before the lease
commence date. Subsequently, the deferred inflow of resources is recognized as revenue over the life of
the lease term.
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City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2023 and 2022

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Key estimates and judgements include how the Agency determines (1) the discount rate it uses to discount
the expected lease receipts to present value, 2) lease-term, and (3) lease receipts.

e The Agency uses its estimated incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate for leases.
¢ The lease term includes the noncancellable period of the lease. Lease receipts included in
the measurement of the lease receivable is composed of fixed payments from the lessee.

The Agency monitors changes in circumstances that would require measurement of its lease, and will
remeasure the lease receivable and deferred inflows of resources if certain changes occur that are
expected to significantly affect the amount of the lease receivable (see Note 5).

Net Pension Liability (Asset)

The net pension liability (asset) represents the Agency’'s proportionate share of the net pension liability
(asset) of the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System. The financial reporting of this
amount is presented in accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 68, “Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions” and GASB Statement No. 71, “Pension Transition for Contributions
Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date” - An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 68”.

Revenue Recognition

The Agency charges an agency, refinancing, management administration or application fee based on the
amount of financing for each project at a predetermined rate. All such agency, management administration
and application fees are collected and recognized as revenue at closing.

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources less liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources. Net position is comprised of three components: net investment in
capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted.

Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation/amortization
and reduced by outstanding balances of bonds and other debt that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related
debt are also included in this component of net position.

Restricted net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
related to those assets. Assets are reported as restricted when constraints are placed on asset use either
through the enabling legislation adopted by the Agency or through external restrictions imposed by
creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments. Restricted net position for the Agency
includes restricted for activities of the Yonkers Pier.

Unrestricted net position is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and
deferred inflows of resources that does not meet the definition of the two preceding categories.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources and disclosures of contingent
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City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2023 and 2022

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Subsequent Events Evaluation by Management

Management has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure and/or recogpnition in the financial statements
through the date that the financial statements were available to be issued, which date is March XX, 2024.

Note 3 - Loan Receivable

Loan receivable at December 31, 2023 and 2022 consists of the following:

2023 2022
Yonkers Larkin Garage, Inc. $ 2629000 $ 2,629,000
Accrued Interest 155,061 117,758
Allowance for uncollectible amounts (2,784,061) (2,746,758)
$ - % -

Prior to 2018, the Agency had a loan receivable from the Yonkers Economic Development Corporation
(“YEDC"). Simultaneously, the YEDC had a loan receivable from Yonkers Larkin Garage, Inc. (“YLG").
During 2018, the goveming boards of the Agency and the YEDC agreed to have the YEDC assign its loan
receivable from YLG of $2,629,000 to the Agency:in satisfaction of its loan that was in part used to finance
the construction of the garage. The loan bears interest at 6.5%. The amounts owed by the YEDC are
deemed satisfied and the Agency is due amounts from YLG based on available cash flows from that
garage’'s operations. Since the YLG has not been profitable since inception, it was determined that an
allowance should be recorded to reflect the uncertainty of future collection of the loan and accrued interest.
There was no interest income on this obligation for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022.

Note 4 - Restricted Cash

Restricted cash consists of funds held in escrow by the Agency for various projects and activities. Funds
are released as authorized invoices are presented for payment or reimbursement. The balance of restricted
cash at December 31 is as follows:

2023 2022
Austin Avenue $ - $ 5
Yonkers Pier 118,460 208,247
Workforce Investment Board 124,039 24,430
Escrow Deposits - Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreements 156,678 126,882

$ 399,177 $ 359,564
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City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2023 and 2022

Note 5 - Lease Receivable

The Agency leases rental space. The lease is for twenty-four months and the Agency will receive
monthly payments of $15,000. The Agency recognized $56,583 in lease revenue recorded as license
fee and $2,308 in interest revenue during the current fiscal year related to this lease. As of December
31, 2023, the Agency's receivable for lease payments was $115,385. During 2023, the lessee filed for
bankruptcy and stopped making lease payments. Since it was determined at that time that future
collectability was uncertain, the deferred inflow of resources was reclassified as an allowance for
uncollectible amounts and netted against the lease receivable as reflected on the Statement of Net
Position.

Note 6 - Capital Assets

Changes in the Agency’s capital assets are as follows:

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2023 Additions 2023
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Leasehold improvements $ 11,014,025 $ - $ 11,014,025
Furniture and fixtures 27,099 - 27,099
Total capital assets
being depreciated 11,041,124 - 11,041,124
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Leasehold improvements 8,535,866 550,701 9,086,567
Furniture and fixtures 26,695 404 27,099
Total accumulated depreciation 8,562,561 551,105 9,113,666
Capital assets, net $ 2478563 $ 551,105 § 1,927,458
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2022 Additions 2022
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Leasehold improvements $ 11,014,025 $ - $ 11,014,025
Furniture and fixtures 27,099 - 27,099
Total capital assets
being depreciated 11,041,124 - 11,041,124
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Leasehold improvements 7,985,165 550,701 8,535,866
Furniture and fixtures 24,736 1,959 26,695
Total accumulated depreciation 8,009,901 552,660 8,562,561
Capital assets, net $ 3031223 $ 552660 $§ 2,478,563
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City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

December 31, 2023 and 2022

Note 7 - Long-Term Liabilities

The following table summarizes changes in the Agency’'s long-term liabilities for the years ended

December 31, 2023 and 2022:

Maturities
Balance and/or Balance
January 1, New Issues/ Payments December 31, Due Within
2023 Additions and Other 2023 One Year
Loans payable $ 754800 § - $ 197816 $ 556,984 § 131,984
Net Pension Liability- ERS - 457,876 - 457,876 -
Long-Term Liabilities $ 754800 $ 457876 $ 197816 $ 1,014,860 $ 131,984
Maturities
Balance and/or Balance
January 1, New Issues/ Payments December 31, Due Within
2022 Additions and Other 2022 One Year
Loans payable $ 939,725 § - $.184925 § 754,800 $ 208,416
Net Pension Liability- ERS 2,189 s = 2,189 - -
Long-Term Liabilities $ 941914 % - $ 187,114 § 754,800 $ 208,416

Loans Payable

Loans payable are comprised of the following:

Section 108 Loan - Yonkers Pier

The Agency took over a Section 108 loan in 2015. Principal repayments began April 1, 2015 (August 1,
2015 for Note C), along with quarterly interest payments, with any unpaid principal and interest due upon

maturity. The loan bears interest at rates ranging from .31% to 3.1% depending on maturity. At December
31, 2023 aggregate annual debt maturities, excluding interest, are as follows:

2024 $ 100,000
2025 100,000
2026 150,000
2027 175,000

$ 525,000

New York Power Authority (“NYPA”)

The terms of the loan provide for repayment over nine years in monthly installments of principal and
interest. Interest is charged at 7.50%. The principal and interest requirement to NYPA is included in the
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City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2023 and 2022

Note 7 - Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

monthly energy bill for the City. The Agency reimburses the City the monthly installments of $10,783. At
December 31, 2023 aggregate annual debt maturities, excluding interest, are as follows:

2024 $ 31,984

The NYPA loan and the Section 108 loan, in the original amounts of $982,736 and $950,000, were
transferred to the Agency as special obligations payable to the extent of and limited to sub license fees due
from HCC Caterers, Inc.

The 2023 instaliments inclusive of interest of $84,106 for the Section 108 loan — Yonkers Pier and $75,484
for the New York Power Authority for a total of $159,590 due the City. was not paid as of December 31,
2023 and reflected on the statement of net position as due to other governments. The installment of
$84,106 for the Section 108 loan — Yonkers Pier was subsequently paid to the City.

Pension Plan
New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System

The Agency and the Workforce Investment Board participate. in the New York State and Local Employees’
Retirement System (“ERS"). This is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. ERS
provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. The net position of the ERS is held in
the New York State Common Retirement Fund (“Fund”), which was established to hold all net assets and
record changes in fiduciary net position. The Comptroller of the State of New York serves as the trustee of
the Fund and is the administrative head of the ERS. ' The Comptroller is an elected official determined in a
direct statewide election and serves a four year term. Obligations of employers and employees to
contribute and benefits to employees are governed by the New York State Retirement and Social Security
Law (“NYSRSSL"). Once a public employer elects to participate in the ERS, the election is irrevocable.
The New York State Constitution provides that pension membership is a contractual relationship and plan
benefits cannot be diminished or impaired. = Benefits can be changed for future members only by
enactment of a State statute. The Agency also participates in the Public Employees’ Group Life Insurance
Plan, which provides death benefits in the form of life insurance. The ERS is included in the State's
financial report as a pension trust fund. That report, including information with regard to benefits provided
may be found at www.osc.state.ny.us/retire/about_us/financial_statements_index.php or obtained by
writing to the New York State and Local Retirement System, 110 State Street, Albany, NY 12244.

The ERS is noncontributory except for employees who joined after July 2, 1976, who contribute 3% of their
salary for the first ten years of membership, and employees who joined on or after January 1, 2010, who
generally contribute between 3% and 6% of their salary for their entire length of service. Under the
authority of the NYSRSSL, the Comptroller annually certifies the actuarially determined rates expressly
used in computing the employers’ contributions based on salaries paid during the ERS's fiscal year ending
March 31. Contribution rates for the plan’s year ending in 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Tier/Plan Rate
2023 4 A15 148 %
5A15 12.8
6 A15 9.4
2022 4 A15 12.9 %
5A15 11.0
6 A15 8.1
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City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2023 and 2022

Note 7 - Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

The Agency reported the following for its proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) for ERS at
December 31:

2023 2022
Measurement date March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Net pension liability (asset) $ 457,876 $ (200,851)
Agency's proportion of the
net pension liability (asset) 0.0021352 % 0.0024570 %
Change in proportion since the
prior measurement date (0.0003218) % 0.0002583 %

The net pension liability (asset) was measured as of March 31, 2023 and 2022 and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability (asset) was determined by actuarial valuations as of those
dates. The Agency's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) was based on a computation of the
actuarially determined indexed present value of future compensation by employer relative to the total of all
participating members.

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Agency recognized its proportionate share pension
expense of $103,587 and $46,750. At December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Agency reported its proportionate
share of deferred outflows of resources and deferred. inflows of resources related to the ERS from the
following sources:

2023
Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources  of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 48,767 $ 12,859
Changes of assumptions 222,374 2,458
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments
Changes in proportion and differences between
Agency contributions and proportionate
share of contributions 44,374 15,237
Agency contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 80,531 -

2,690

$ 396,046 § 33,244
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City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2023 and 2022

Note 7 - Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

2022
Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources  of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 15211  § 19,729
Changes of assumptions 335,198 5,656
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments
Changes in proportion and differences between
Agency contributions and proportionate
share of contributions 42,304 5,525
Agency contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 67,493 -

657,703

$ 460206 $ 688,613

The amount of $80,531 reported as deferred outflows of resources at December 31, 2023 related to ERS
resulting from the Agency's contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the plan’'s year ended March 31, 2024. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows of resources and deferred.inflows of resources related to ERS will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

For Years
Ending
March 31,
2024 $ 71,025
2025 (13,880)
2026 100,222
2027 124,904
2028 -
$ 282,271

The total pension liability for the March 31, 2023 measurement date was determined by using an actuarial
valuation date as noted below with update procedures used to roll forward the total pension liability to the
measurement date. Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation were as follows:

Measurement date March 31, 2023
Actuarial valuation date April 1, 2022
Investment rate of return 59% *
Salary scale 4.4%
Inflation rate 2.9%
Cost of living adjustments 1.5%

*Compounded annually, net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2023 and 2022

Note 7 - Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Annuitant mortality rates are based on the System's experience with adjustments for mortality
improvements based on Society of Actuaries Scale MP-2021.

The actuarial assumptions used in the valuation are based on the results of an actuarial experience study
of the period April 1, 2015 - March 31, 2020.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected return, net of
investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined
to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the target asset
allocation is summarized in the following table.

Long-Term
Expected
Target Real Rate
Asset Type Allocation of Return
Domestic Equity 32 % 430 %
International Equity 16 6.85
Private Equity 10 7.50
Real Estate 9 4.60
Opportunistic/ARS Portfolio 3 5.38
Credit 4 5.43
Real Assets 3 5.84
Fixed{Income 23 1.50
Cash 1 B
100 %

The real rate of return is net of the long-term inflation assumption of 2.9%.

The discount rate used to calculate the total pension liability was 5.9%. The projection of cash flows used
to determine the discount rate assumes that contributions from plan members will be made at the current
contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates,
actuarially determined. Based upon those assumptions, the System'’s fiduciary net position was projected
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2023 and 2022

Note 7 - Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

The following presents the Agency’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) calculated using
the discount rate of 5.9%, as well as what the Agency’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
(asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (4.9%) or 1
percentage point higher (6.9%) than the current rate:

2023
1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(4.9%) (5.9%) (6.9%)
Agency's proportionate share
of the net pension liability (asset) $ 1,106,490 $ 457,876 $ (84,116)
2022
1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(4:9%) (5.9%) (6.9%)
Agency's proportionate share
of the net pension liability (asset) $ 516,989 $ (200,851) $ (801,289)

The components of the current year collective net pension liability as of the March 31, 2023 measurement
date were as follows:

Total pension liability $ 232,627,259,000
Fiduciary net position 211,183,223,000
Employers' net pension liability (asset) $ 21,444,036,000

Fiduciary net position as a
percentage of total pension liability 90.78%

Employer contributions to ERS are paid annually and cover the period through the end of the System’s
fiscal year, which is March 31st. Retirement contributions as of December 31, 2023 represent the
employer contribution for the period of April 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023 based on prior year ERS
wages multiplied by the employers’ contribution rate, by tier. Retirement contributions to ERS for the nine
months ended December 31, 2023 were $80,531.

Voluntary Defined Contribution Plan
The Agency can offer a defined contribution plan to all non-union employees hired on or after July 1, 2013
and earning at the annual full-time salary rate of $75,000 or more. The employee contribution is between

3% and 6% depending on salary and the Agency will contribute 8%. Employer contributions vest after 366
days of service. No current employees participated in this program.
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December 31, 2023 and 2022

Note 8 - Other Post Employment Benefit Obligations

The Agency does not provide healthcare benefits for retired employees.

Note 9 - Industrial Revenue Bonds and Notes and Straight-Lease Transactions

Certain industrial revenue bonds and notes issued by the Agency are secured by property which is leased
to companies and are retired by lease payments. The bonds and notes are not obligations of the Agency,
the City or the State of New York. The Agency does not record the assets or liabilities resulting from
completed bond and note issues in its accounts, since its primary function is to arrange the financing
between the borrowing companies and the bond and note holders, and funds arising there-from are
controlled by trustees or banks acting as fiscal agents. Trustees maintain the information for these bonds
and notes and no default notices have been generated in the current year. For providing this service, the
Agency receives bond administration fees from the borrowing companies. The fee received by the Agency
is one percent of the bond amount. In addition, the Agency receives closing fees for straight-lease
transactions of half of one percent of total project costs. Such administrative fee income is recognized
immediately upon issuance of bonds and notes or closing on leases.

Note 10 - Related Parties
Yonkers Economic Development Corporation

The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation (“Corporation”) was created in 2007 to provide certain
taxable and tax exempt financial assistance on occasions where these incentives are no longer provided
by the Agency or in instances where the Agency's ability to assist economic development projects has
been significantly limited. The Corporation's purpose of promoting the creation and preservation of
employment opportunities is in line with the Agency's overall objectives and may deliver financial
assistance in a more cost effective form through this federal exempt corporation under IRS Section 115. In
addition, the debt issuances of the Corporation will not be liabilities of the State of New York, the City or the
Agency. The Corporation’s board is comprised of four of the seven Agency board members.

Note 11 - Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

New Accounting Pronouncement

GASB Statement No. 96, “Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements (SBITA’s)",
established a single model! for SBITA accounting based on the concept that SBITA’s are a financing of a
“right-to-use” underlying asset. This statement requires a subscriber to recognize a subscription liability and
an intangible right-to-use subscription asset. The requirements of GASB Statement No. 96 are effective for
the Agency's fiscal year ended December 31, 2023. The Agency has completed its evaluation of the
financial impact of GASB Statement No. 96 and determined that the implementation of this standard was
not required as it did not have a material impact on its financial statements.

Note 12 - Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation
in the normal course of business there are a number of actions against the Agency that involve personal

injury and/or contractual disputes between the plaintiffs and the project beneficiary. In each case, the
Agency has been indemnified by the project beneficiary and, in the opinion of the Agency’s management,
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2023 and 2022

Note 12 - Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

the project beneficiary has insurance in place to mitigate any losses that may uitimately result from the
resolution of such litigation. While the Agency has been named in many of these actions, in the opinion of
management based on consultation with legal counsel, the ultimate resolution of such litigation matters
should not result in any liability to the Agency.

Austin Avenue

In 1979, the City entered into a Consent Order with the New York State Department of Environmental
Conservation ("NYSDEC") to remediate the Austin Avenue landfill site located in the City. All physical work
required by NYSDEC in the approved Remedial Action Plan has been completed as of December 31,
2018. The NYSDEC has issued a certificate of completion for the site. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021,
all bills relating to this work were paid and the Agency’s dedicated account for the Austin Avenue
remediation held a balance of $0 and $5 to pay any final legal bills, insurance costs and NYSDEC fees.
The details of the restricted cash relating to this project is disclosed in Note 5.

Ground Lease

The Ground Lessor is the owner of real estate located at10 Woodworth Avenue and 45 Warburton
Avenue, Yonkers, New York (together the “Premises”) where the Yonkers Larkin Garage Project (“Project”)
is located. The Ground Lessor leased the Premises to the Yonkers Community Development Agency
(“YCDA") under a ground lease agreement dated August 5, 2011 (“Initial Ground Lease”) and immediately
thereafter, YCDA granted the easements to the City and the County of Westchester, New York. YCDA
assigned its leasehold interest under the initial Ground Lease to the YEDC pursuant to the Assignment of
Initial Ground Lease. The YEDC thereafter assigned its leasehold interest under the Initial Ground Lease to
the YIDA to develop and operate a garage for private:and general public use. The Initial Ground Lease was
amended by the Ground Lessor under which it has ground leased the Premises to the YIDA for a term of
49 years. Title to all buildings and improvements situated or erected on the Premises shall vest to the
Ground Lessor on the day following the last day of the term.

Ground Sublease

In August 2011, the YIDA and the YLG executed a sublease, whereby YLG was granted the rights to use
the land and existing improvements for purposes of constructing and operating the Project. The term of the
ground sublease is for 49 years and requires the YLG to pay the City base rent once a year in August at an
amount based on “Available Cash Flow" as defined by the ground sublease agreement.

Note 13 - Risk Management

The Agency purchases conventional insurance coverage for directors and officers liability and employment
practices liability in the combined form. The current policy reflects a combined limit of $2 million per
occurrence or $2 million for the period of the policy.

Note 14 - Workforce Investment Board
YIDA is established to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare and
standard of living of the inhabitants of the City. To further its objectives of economic development, the

YIDA Board approved and established a relationship with the Workforce Investment Board in May 2009.
Its Chairman, as Mayor of the City, was designated as a grant recipient to create and implement workforce
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Notes to Financial Statements (Concluded)
December 31, 2023 and 2022

Note 14 - Workforce Investment Board (Continued)

investment activities. Grant employees were hired to conduct activities to meet the objectives and are
solely funded by grants. These grant employees receive employment benefits consistent with other
YIDA employees to the extent that such benefits are reimbursable to YIDA. The activities related to the
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act, Adult Programs (“WIOA") grant are reported as non-operating
revenues and expenses on the Statement of Activities.

YIDA receives the funding for WIOA programs from the City. The City reports the expenditures of federal
awards in its annual schedule of expenditures of federal awards. The compliance audit is determined
and performed as part of the City audit.

Note 15 - Recently Issued GASB Pronouncements

GASB Statement No. 101, “Compensated Absences”, provides guidance on the accounting and financial
reporting for compensated absences. The objective of this Statement.is to better meet the information
needs of financial statement users by updated the recognition and measurement guidance for
compensated absences. That objective is achieved by aligning recognition and measurement guidance
under a unified model and by amending certain previously required disclosures. The requirements of this
Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after. December 15, 2023.

This is not an all-inclusive list of recently issued GASB pronouncements but rather a listing of Statements
that the Agency believes will most impact its financial statements. The Agency will evaluate the impact

this and other pronouncements may have on its financial statements and will implement them as
applicable and when material.

dedkededkdk
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City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

Required Supplementary Information
New York State and Local Employees' Retirement System
Last Ten Fiscal Years (1)

Schedule of the Agency's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) (2)

2023 (3) 2022 (4) 2021 (4) 2020 (3)

Agency's proportion of the net

pension liability (asset) 0.0021352% 0.0024570% 0.0021987% 0.0021672%
Agency's proportionate share of the

net pension liability (asset) $ 457,876 §$ (200,851) $ 2,189 § 573,899
Agency's covered payroll $ 901,731 § 871815 § 855744 §$ 830,853
Agency's proportionate share of the

net pension liability (asset) as a percentage

of its covered payroll 50.78% -23.04% 0.26% 69.07%
Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total pension liability 90.78% 103.65% 99.95% 86.39%
Discount Rate 5.90% 5.90% 5.90% 6.80%

Schedule of Contributions
2023 2022 2021 2020

Contractually required contribution $ 89,348 % 118,698 §$ 104,612 § 95,101
Contributions in relation to the

contractually required contribution (89,348) (118,698) (104,612) (95,101)
Contribution excess $ - 3 - $ - 3 -
Agency's covered payroll $ 1,062,728 § 985,793 § 967,257 § 819,284
Contributions as a percentage of

covered payroll 8.41% 12.04% 10.82% 11.61%

(1) Data not available prior to fiscal year 2015 implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 68, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions".

(2) The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the March 31 measurement date within the

current fiscal year.

(3) Increase in the Agency's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) mainly attributable to decrease in

plan fiduciary net position due to investment losses.

(4) Decrease in the Agency's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) mainly attributable to increase in

plan fiduciary net position due to investment gains.

See independent auditors' report
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2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

0.0022820% 0.0025275% 0.0026327% 0.0026060% 0.0038741%

$ 161,688 $ 81,575 § 247376 $ 418,278 § 130,877

$ 746,791 $ 703,768 § 752,593 § 701,732 $ 681,322

21.65% 11.59% 32.87% 59.61% 19.21%

96.27% 98.24% 94.70% 90.70% 97.90%

7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.50%
20189 2018 2017 2016 2015

$ 95267 $ 96297 $ 93154 $ . 84,656 83,895
(95,267) (96,297) (93,154) (84,656) (83,895)

$ - -3 Als -3 -

$ 807,967 $ 708,814 - $ 687,779 $ 758,089 $ 751,107

11.79% 13.59% 13.54% 11.17% 11.17%

See independent auditors’ report
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City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

Supplementary Information
Schedule of Indebtedness - Bonds and Notes
December 31, 2023

Project Name Issue Maturity Interest Original Balance at New Issues in
Owner Name and Address Date Date Rate Issue 1/1/2023 2023

Consumer Union December 2005 6/1/2036 367% $ 47,300,000 $ 30725000 $ -
Monastery Manor Association, L.P. September 2005  4/1/2037 5.00% 9,500,000 6,360,000 -
Sacred Heart A September 2006  10/1/2037 3.80 - 5.00% 7,345,000 5,075,000 -
Center of Family Services January 2008 7/1/2023 5.50 - 5.80% 1,180,000 165,000 -
Jefferson Terrace - 2006 A December 2006 5/1/2048 5.95% 3,600,000 3,091,376 -
Main Street Lofts December 2005 12/1/2038 2.80% 44,600,000 44,600,000 -
Sarah Lawrence College, Series B December 2009 6/1/2032 7.75% 1,950,000 1,950,000 -
Yonkers Joint School Commission Bond - Series 2021  September 2021  11/1/2051 4.00 - 5.00% 25,000,000 25,000,000 -
Yonkers Joint School Commission Bond - Series 2022  December 2022 11/1/2051 5.00 - 5.25% 46,240,000 46,240,000 -

Project Purpose Col

1 - Services

2 - Construction

3 - Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing

4 - Wholesale Trade

5 - Retail Trade

6 - Finance, Insurance and Real Estate

7 - Transportation, C ication, Electric, Gas and Sanitary Services

8 - Other
9 - Manufacturing

See independent auditors’ report.
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$ 186,725,000

$ 163,206,376 $ -




Original Original Tax Exemptions
Project  Estimate of  Estimate of Federal
Retired in Balance at Purpose  Jobs to be Jobs to be Real Property Tax Tax

2023 12/31/2023 Code Created Retained County Local School Exemptions

$ 1,725000 $ 29,000,000 8 420 - $ nla $ nfa na Exempt

6,360,000 - 8 7 7 5,584 11,985 22,431 Exempt

235,000 4,840,000 8 7 7 5,584 11,985 22,431 Exempt

165,000 - 8 9 - n/a n/a n/a Exempt

53,700 3,037,676 8 3 3 n/a n/a n/a Exempt

- 44,600,000 8 6 6 n/a n/a n/a Exempt

- 1,950,000 8 345 345 n/a n/a n/a Exempt

- 25,000,000 8 14 14 n/a n/a n/a Exempt

- 46,240,000 8 14 14 n/a n/a na Exempt

$ 8,538,700 $ 154,667,676
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City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

Supplementary Information
Schedule of Straight-Lease Transactions Executed in 2023
December 31, 2023

Method of
Financial
Assistance, Original Original
Total Other than Project Estimate of Estimate of
Project Name Amount of the Tax Purpose Jobstobe  Jobs to be
Owner Name and Address Lease Exemptions Code Created Retained
X20 - Xaviers on the Hudson $180,000/Year Loan 8 n/a n/a

71 Water Grant Street
Yonkers, NY 10701

Project Purpose Codes

1 - Services

2 - Construction

3 - Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing

4 - Wholesale Trade

5 - Retail Trade

6 - Finance, Insurance and Real Estate

7 - Transportation, Communication, Electric, Gas and Sanitary Services
8 - Other

9 - Manufacturing

See independent auditors' report.
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City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

Supplementary Information
Schedule of Payments in Lieu of Taxes
December 31, 2023

Project Total City County
11-23 St. Casmir Avenue $ 37,500 $ 32,265 5,235
76 Locust Hill 14,009 12,119 1,890
188 Warburton - Shelter Rent 60,660 52,192 8,468
1175 Warburton Ave LLC 219,439 188,476 30,963
222 Lake Ave - Lake Opportunity Holdings 35,000 30,279 4,722
1969 Central Park Ave 16,128 13,953 2,176
326 Riverdale Owners 275,363 238,217 37,146
34 Highland Partners LLC 55,000 47,581 7,420
34 Highland Partners LLC - Additional 15,044 13.015 2,029
Payment
411 Bronx River Development LLC 61,089 52,848 8,241
555 Storage 270,315 233,850 36,465
56 Prospect Holdings LLC 26,082 22,564 3,518
57 Alexander 133,019 115,075 17,944
70 Ashburton Ave - Hudson Blue 140,111 121,210 18,901
78 Morningside 19,312 16,707 2,605
9-11 Riverdale 11,483 9,934 1,549
AAM Yonkers A Hotel LLC 424,405 367,153 57,252
Ashburton Avenue, LP 980 848 132
Avalon ATI Site 615,015 532,049 82,966
Avalon Sun Sites 800,024 692,101 107,923
Cahokia 33,649 29,110 4,539
CPG lli - Shelter Rent 118,639 102,077 16,562
Cromwell Towers 235,300 203,558 31,742
Collins IlI 454,170 392,902 61,268
Croton Heights 1,000 865 135
Dayspring Commons L.P. 80,030 69,234 10,796
Extell Hudson Waterfront LLC 374,029 323,572 50,457
FC Yonkers (Ridge Hill) 603,810 519,518 84,292
FC Yonkers (Ridge Hill) 603,810 519,518 84,292
FC Yonkers (Ridge Hill) 603,810 519,518 84,292
FC Yonkers (Ridge Hill) 603,810 519,518 84,292
FC Yonkers (Ridge Hill) 603,810 519,518 84,292
FC Yonkers (Ridge Hill) 603,810 519,518 84,292
FC Yonkers (Ridge Hill) 603,810 520,243 83,567
FC Yonkers (Ridge Hill) 603,810 520,243 83,567
FC Yonkers (Ridge Hill) 603,810 520,243 83,567
FC Yonkers (Ridge Hill) 603,810 520,243 83,567
FC Yonkers (Ridge Hill) 603,810 520,243 83,567
FC Yonkers (Ridge Hill) 628,011 543,280 84,731
Grant Park |l 45,124 39,037 6,087
(Continued)
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Supplementary Information
Schedule of Payments in Lieu of Taxes (Continued)
December 31, 2023

Project Total City County

Greyston Bakery $ 25,000 21,510 3,490
InStock Cabinets 139,294 120,503 18,791
Jackson Terrace - min payment 75,000 64,880 10,120
Jackson Terrace Preservation LLC - shelter 30,290 4,914
rent 35,204

Jefferson Terrace - min payment 75,000 64,880 10,120
Jefferson Terrace - shelter rent 70,288 60,806 9,482
KCT - Cubesmart 20,527 17,758 2,769
Lionsgate - Phase 1 120,314 104,084 16,230
Lionsgate - Phase 2 699,479 605,120 94,360
Macys 1,272,437 1,100,785 171,652
Maple Realty Management inc 19,723 17,062 2,661
MillCreek 64,353 55,672 8,681
Monastery Manor 40,000 34,603 5,397
Monastery Manor - Shelter Rent 33,106 28,485 4,622
Mulford I, LP 2,000 1,730 270
Parkledge Apartments 439,629 378,257 61,372
Post Street 76,800 66,440 10,360
P.S 6 - Shelter Rent 121,524 104,559 16,965
Point and Ravine 59,434 51,416 8,018
Rising 97,067 83,973 13,094
RiverTides 1,383,522 1,196,885 186,637
Riverview Il Preservation LP 350,034 302,814 47,220
RMS Warburton 283,497 245,253 38,244
RXR Soyo 939,407 812,681 126,726
Sacred Heart 40,000 34,603 5,397
Sacred Heart - Shelter Rent 23,221 19,979 3,242
St. Casimirs, LP 94,074 81,384 12,691
Stagg Construction 238,009 205,902 32,107
Tacos El Poblanos 16,180 13,997 2,183
Warburton Riverview Owners LLC 26,196 22,662 3,534
Westchester ALP 1 65,280 56,474 8,806
Westchester ALP 2 14,720 12,734 1,986
Whitney Young 155,797 134,780 21,017
Woodstock 30,000 25,953 4,047
Woodstock - Shelter Rent 5,804 4,994 810
406 Walnut - Shelter Rent 260,450 224,091 36,359
MGM Yonkers 5,381,493 4,655,530 725,963
Yonkers BV AMS LLC 244,858 211,827 33,031
Yonkers Contracting Company 83,458 72,200 11,259
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With
Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors of the
City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the City of Yonkers
Industrial Development Agency (“Agency”) which comprise the statement of net position as of December
31, 2023 and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements, and have issued.our report thereon dated , 2024.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Agency's internal
control over financial reporting (“internal control”) as.a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing ‘an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency's internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in.the normal course of performing their assigned functions to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Agency'’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal contro!
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

PKF O'CONNOR DAVIES, LLP
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528 | Tel: 914.381.8900 | Fax: 914.381.8910 | www.pkfod.com

PKF O'Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility or liability
for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms.



Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Agency's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Agency's internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP
Harrison, New York
, 2024
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors of the
City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

Report on the Audit of the Schedule of Cash and Investments
Opinion

We have audited the Schedule of Cash and Investments (“Schedule”) of the City of Yonkers Industrial
Development Agency (“Agency”) as of and for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and the
related notes to the Schedule.

In our opinion, the accompanying Schedule and related notes referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the cash and investments of the Agency as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (“GAAS”) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Schedule. We are
required to be independent of the Agency, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Schedule

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Schedule in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
the Schedule that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

PKF O'CONNOR DAVIES LLP
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528 | Tel: 914.381.8900 | Fax: 914.381.8910 | www.pkfod.com

PKF O’'Connor Davies LLP is a member firm of the PKF international Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility or liability
for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms.



Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Schedule

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Schedule is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the Schedule.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Schedule, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the
Schedule.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
Schedule.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated , 2024
on our consideration of the Agency's intemnal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters
with respect to the Schedule. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Agency’s intemal control over financial reporting and compliance.

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP
Harrison, New York
, 2024



City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

Schedule of Cash and Investments
December 31,

2023 2022
Cash and equivalents $ 5073,226 $ 4,779,542
Restricted cash 399,177 359,564
$ 5,472,403 § 5,139,106

See accompanying notes.



City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

Notes to Schedule of Cash and Investments
Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

Note 1 - Organization and Purpose

The City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency (“YIDA") or ("Agency") was created in 1982 as a public
benefit corporation by the New York State Legislature under the provisions of Chapter 83 for the purpose of
promoting and supporting the development of commerce, bolstering employment and stimulating economic
growth and prosperity in the City of Yonkers, New York (“City”). The Agency is exempt from Federal, State
and local income taxes. The Agency, although supported by the City, is a separate entity and operates
independently from the City. Members of the governing board are appointed by the Mayor of the City for
specified terms.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Equivalents, Investments and Risk Disclosure

Cash and Equivalents - Cash and equivalents consist of funds deposited in demand deposit
accounts, time deposit accounts and short-term investments with original maturities of less than
three months from the date of acquisition.

The Agency's deposit and investment policies are governed by State statutes. The Agency has
adopted its own written investment policy which provides for the deposit of funds in FDIC insured
commercial banks or trust companies located within the State. The Agency is authorized to use
demand deposits, time deposit accounts and certificates of deposit.

Collateral is required for these deposits at 102% of all deposits not covered by Federal deposit
insurance. The Agency has entered into a custodial agreement with its depository which holds its
deposits. This agreement authorizes the obligations that may be pledged as collateral. Such
obligations include among other instruments, obligations of the United States and its agencies and
obligations of the State and its municipal and school district subdivisions.

Investments - Permissible investments include obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. Agencies,
repurchase agreements and obligations of New York State or its political subdivisions.

The Agency follows the provisions of GASB Statement No. 72, “Fair Value Measurement and
Application”, which defines fair value and establishes a fair value hierarchy organized into three
levels based upon the input assumptions used in pricing assets. Level 1 inputs have the highest
reliability and are related to assets with unadjusted quoted prices in active markets. Level 2 inputs
relate to assets with other than quoted prices in active markets which may include quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities or other inputs which can be corroborated by observable market data.
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs and are used to the extent that observable inputs do not
exist.

The Agency does not have any investments at December 31, 2023 and 2022.



City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

Notes to Schedule of Cash and Investments (Concluded)
Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

Note 3 - Subsequent Events (Continued)

Risk Disclosure

Interest Rate Risk - Interest rate risk is the risk that the entity will incur losses in fair value
caused by changing interest rates. The Agency does not have a formal investment policy that
limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from
changing interest rates. Generally, the Agency does not invest in any long-term investment
obligations.

Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
Agency's deposits may not be retumed to it. GASB Statement No. 40, “Deposit and Investment
Risk Disclosures — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 3", directs that deposits be disclosed as
exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance and the deposits are
either uncollateralized, collateralized by securities held by the pledging financial institution or
collateralized by securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department but not in the
Agency's name. The Agency’'s aggregate bank balances that were not covered by depository
insurance were not exposed to custodial credit risk at December 31, 2023 and 2022.

Credit Risk - Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty will not fulfill its specific
obligation even without the entity’s complete failure. The Agency does not have a formal credit
risk policy other than restrictions to obligations allowable under General Municipal Law of the
State of New York.

Concentration of Credit Risk - Concentration of credit risk is the risk attributed to the magnitude
of an entity’s investments in a single issuer. The Agency's investment policy limits the amount on
deposit at each of its banking institutions.

Restricted Cash - Restricted cash consists of funds held in escrow by the Agency for various
projects and activities. Funds are released as authorized invoices are presented for payment or
reimbursement. The balance of restricted cash at December 31 is as follows:

2023 2022
Austin Avenue $ - $ 5
Yonkers Pier 118,460 208,247
Workforce Investment Board 124,039 24,430
Escrow Deposits - Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreements 156,678 126,882

$ 399,177 $ 359,564

*k k * k
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Schedule of Cash and Investments
Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors of the
City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the Schedule of Cash and Investments
(“Schedule”) of the City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency (“Agency”) as of December 31, 2023
and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to
the Schedule, and have issued our report thereon dated , 2024.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit of the Schedule, we considered the Agency's internal control over
financial reporting (“internal control”) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the Schedule, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Agency’'s Schedule will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely
basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.

PKF O'CONNOR DAVIES, LLP
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528 | Tel: 914.381.8900 | Fax: 914.381.8910 | www.pkfod.com

PKF O'Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF Intemational Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility or liability
for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or fims



Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Agency's Schedule is free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts
and grant agreements, investment policies established by the Agency and the New York State
Comptroller investment guideline requirements as presented in Section 201.3(c) of the Accounting,
Reporting and Supervision Requirements for Public Authorities, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the Schedule. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency'’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Agency's internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

PKF O'Connor Davies, LLP
Harrison, New York
, 2024
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City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency
Report to Those Charged with Governance
December 31, 2023

, 2024

Prepared by

Robert A. Daniele, CPA

Partner

KN Ow rdaniele@pkfod.com
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, 2024

The Board of Directors and Executive Director
City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency
(“Agency”) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023 and have issued our report thereon dated
, 2024.

Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under
generally accepted auditing standards as well as certain information related to the planned scope and
timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our engagement letter to you dated
November 15, 2023. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following
information related to our audit.

We are pleased to be of service to you and the City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency and
appreciate the opportunity to present our audit findings to you. We are also pleased to discuss other
matters which may be of interest to you and to answer any questions you may have.

This information is intended solely for the information and use of Those Charged with Governance and
management of the City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP



OCONNOR
DAVIES

ACCOUNTANTS AND ADVISORS

ESTABLISHEDIN 1891
Contents
Status Of the AUMIL ..ot e e e sttt e e s mt e s ee s et reeee e s sibeeaaeenne 4
Required Communications and Other Matters. ... 5
Internal Control Over Financial REPOMING ......c.oooiiiiiiiiiiii e e e 11
ON NG HOMZON ...ttt et ettt e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e eestbtbateteesaaanbeaseeeteeenaaannaans 12

Appendices

1 - Corrected Misstatements

2 — Management Representation Letter
3 — About PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP



%
OCONNOR
DAVIES

ACCOUNTANTS AND ADVISORS
ESTABLISHED IN 1891

Status of the Audit

Audit of Financial Statements

e Audit fieldwork is complete.

¢ The financial statements have been drafted and reviewed by management.
¢ We have issued an unmodified report on the financial statements.

e PARIS report is required to be filed by March 31, 2024.
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Required Communications and Other Matters

Required Item Comments

Auditor’s responsibility
under professional
standards and planned
scope and timing of the
audit

We have communicated such information in our engagement letter to
you dated November 15, 2023. Generally, these responsibilities
include:

* Forming and expressing an opinion on the financial
statements.

» Obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free of material misstatements, whether caused by error or
fraud.

» Accumulating and communicating uncorrected misstatements
to Those Charged with Governance (“TCWG").

* Maintaining professional skepticism.

»  Communicating audit related matters that are, in our
professional judgment, significant to TCWG.

Supplementary information
accompanying the financial
statements

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the
financial statements that collectively comprise the Agency's basic
financial statements. The supplementary information is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America.
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Other supplementary
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Comments

Our responsibilty for the other supplementary information
accompanying the financial statements is to read the other
supplementary information and consider whether a material
inconsistency exists between the other supplementary information and
the financial statements, or the other supplementary information
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of
the other supplementary information exists, we are required to
describe it in our report.

Required supplementary
information accompanying
the financial statements

We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’'s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide
any assurance.

Other information in
documents containing
audited financial statements

Our responsibility as auditors for other information in documents
containing the audited financial statements does not extend beyond
the financial information identified in the auditors’ report, and we are
not required to perform any procedures to determine that such other
information is properly stated.

Our responsibilities under
the Yellow Book

In connection with our audit we performed tests of the Agency’s
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants. However, the objective of our tests was not to provide an
opinion on compliance with such provisions.
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Required Item Comments

Responsibilities of
management and TCWG

Management'’s responsibilities include:

« The fair presentation of the financial statements, including the
selection of appropriate accounting policies.

» Establishing and maintaining effective internal control.

» Complying with laws, regulations, grants and contracts.

» Providing the auditors with all financial records and related
information and a signed representation letter.

+ Evaluate if there are any conditions or events, considered in
the aggregate that raise substantial doubt about the Agency’s
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond
the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

» Setting the proper tone at the top.

« Designing and implementing policies and controls to prevent
and detect fraud.

TCWG are responsible for communicating with the auditors and
overseeing the financial reporting process.

Qualitative aspects of
accounting practices -
Accounting Policies

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate
accounting policies. The significant accounting policies are described
in Note 2 to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were
adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed
during the year, except for the adoption of the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 96,
“Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements”. The
Agency evaluated the impact of the statement and determined the
amounts were not material to the financial statements.

The accounting policies of the Agency conform to U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles as applicable to state and local
governments. The Agency's reports are based on all applicable GASB
pronouncements.

We noted no transactions entered into by the Agency during the year
for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.

All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.

Qualitative aspects of
accounting practices —
Significant Unusual
Transactions

No matters have come to our attention that would require us to inform
you about the methods used to account for significant unusual
transactions.
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Required Item | Comments

Qualitative aspects of Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements
accounting practices - prepared by management and are based on management's
Accounting Estimates and knowledge and experience about past and current events and
Management’s Judgment assumptions about future events.

Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of
their significance to the financial statements and because of the
possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from
those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the Agency's
financial statements were:

e Actuarial assumptions and proportionate share calculations
related to pension liabilities
Asset lives for depreciable capital assets

e Estimates of certain receivable balances and allowances for
uncollectible amounts

o Estimates for certain operating and long-term liabilities

Qualitative aspects of Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment
accounting practices - and are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
Financial Statement statement users. The most sensitive disclosure affecting the financial
Disclosures statements are:

e Note 2 — which summarizes significant accounting policies
e Note 7 — which summarizes long-term liabilities including
pension obligations

The financial statement disclosures are consistent and clear.

Going concern The auditor is required to communicate with TCWG events or
conditions that, when considered in the aggregate; indicate a
substantial doubt about the Agency’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We concur with management's assessment that the Agency will
continue as a going concern for one year from the balance sheet date.
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Required Item Comments

Significant risks We have identified the following significant risks in connection with our
audit:

Management override of internal controls
Improper revenue recognition to due to fraud

The audit procedures applied as a result of the aforementioned
significant risks were designed to and have reduced the risk of material
misstatement to low.

Difficulties encountered in We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management
performing the audit in performing and completing our audit.

Corrected and uncorrected Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely
misstatements misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we
believe are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management.

We are required to communicate to you misstatements that remain
uncorrected, including any related to prior periods, and the effect, if
any, that they may have on the opinion in our report, and request their
correction. There are no such financial statement misstatements that
remain uncorrected.

In addition, we are required to communicate to you all material,
corrected misstatements that were brought to the attention of
management as a result of our audit procedures.

In addition, corrected misstatements that were brought to the attention
of management as a result of our audit procedures are also included

in Appendix 1.
Disagreements with For purposes of this communication, a disagreement with
management management is a matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction,

concerning financial accounting, reporting, or auditing, which could be
significant to the financial statements or the auditors’ report. We are
pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course

of the audit.
Management We have requested certain representations from management that are
representations included in the management representation letter (see Appendix 2).
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Required Item Comments

Management’s In some cases, management may decide to consult with other
consultations with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, similar to
accountants obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation

involves application of an accounting principle to the Entity’'s financial
statements or a determination of the type of auditors’ opinion that may
be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require
the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no
such consultations with other accountants.

Auditor independence We affirm that PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is independent with respect
to the Entity in accordance with relevant professional standards.

Significant issues discussed | We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of
with management prior to accounting principles and auditing standards, with management each
retention year prior to retention as the Entity’'s auditor. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional
relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

10
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Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Yonkers
Industrial Development Agency’s (“Agency”) internal control over financial reporting (“internal control”)
as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Professional standards require that we communicate to you, in writing, all significant deficiencies and/or
material weaknesses in internal control that we identify in performing our audit. For this purpose,
deficiencies in internal control are categorized as follows:

e A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.

e A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

¢ A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be deficiencies, significant
deficiencies, or material weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that all such deficiencies
have been identified.

We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses, as
defined above.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management and others charged
with governance and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties. We will be pleased to discuss these communications and comments in further detail at your
convenience, or to assist you in implementing the recommendations.

Harrison, New York
, 2024

11
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On the Horizon

GASB Statement No. 101 — Compensated Absences

Under this Statement, the liabilities for compensated absences is required to be recognized for (1) leave
that has not been used and (2) leave that has been used but not yet paid in cash or settled through
noncash means. A liability should be recognized for leave that has not been used if (a) the leave is
attributable to services already rendered, (b) the leave accumulates, and (c) the leave is more likely than
not to be used for time off or otherwise paid in cash or settled through noncash means.

The Statement establishes guidance for measuring the liability for leave that has not been used,
generally using an employee’s pay rate as of the date of the financial statements. Measurement for the
liability for leave that has been used but not yet paid or settled should be measured at the amount of the
cash payment or noncash settlement to be made.

The Statement does allow recognition of certain types of compensated absences until the leave
commences, including parental, military and jury duty leave.

Further, the Statement amends the existing requirement to disclose the gross increases and decreases
in a liability for compensated absences to allow governments to disclose only the net change in the
liability, as long as it is identified as a net change. In addition, governments are no longer required to
disclose which governmental funds typically have been used to liquidate the liability for compensated
absences.

Governments should review this standard early to anticipate what changes might need to be made to
policies, accounting procedures, laws and regulations. The provisions of this Statement are effective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023 (i.e., the Agency'’s financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2024).

12
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Appendix 1

Corrected Misstatements
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City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

Corrected Misstatements
December 31, 2023

Account Description Debit Credit

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 1
To Adjust GASB 68 pension reporting for the current year.

5302 GASB 68 Deferred Income 655,369

8125 Pension Costs 67,518

3012 GASB 68 - Prepaid Expense 64,160

490 Net Pension Asset 200,851

5010 GASB 68 Pension Liability 457,876
Total 722,887 722,887

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 2
To record depreciation expense for the 2023FY.

8130 Depreciation Expense 405

9230 Pier Depreciation Expense 550,701

4050 Acc. Depreciation 405

4051 Pier Accumulated Depreciation 550,701
Total 551,106 551,106

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 3
To adjust interest receivable and allowance for amount due for the
Larkin Garage Project. No amounts paid in 2023.
2082 Loan Rec. Larkin Garage Int 37,303
2085 Allowance for Larkin Garage 37,303
Total 37,303 37,303

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 4
To record accrual for WIB Retirement for 2024 bill.

8195 Workforce Employee Benefits 52,232

5006 Workforce-Accrued Expenses 52,232
Total 52,232 52,232
Adjusting Journal Entries JE# 5
To reverse prior year accrual for legal fees per Harris Beach attorney.

5000 Accounts Payable 37,125

8500 8500 37,125
Total 37,125 37,125

14
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December 31, 2023
Account Description Debit Credit

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 6
To record year-end accrual for Workforce Grant revenues.

2003 Accounts Receivable-Workforce 69,734

7098 Workforce Grant 69,734
Total 69,734 69,734
Adjusting Journal Entries JE# 7
To adjust principal for Section 108 loan and 2nd interest payment not
paid to City during 2023 to a liability to the City at FYE and to record
accrued interest at FYE.

5200 Sec 108 Note Payable - Pier 75,000

9210 Pier Proj Sec 108 Note Int Exp 6,679

9210 Pier Proj Sec 108 Note Int Exp 9,106

5003 Due to City of Yonkers 9,106

5003 Due to City of Yonkers 75,000

5007 Pier Accrued Expenses 6,679
Total 90,785 90,785
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 8
To adjust principal and interest for the NYPA loans not paid during
FY 2023 and due to the City at 12/31/2023.

5210 NYPA Loan Payable - Pier 72,652

9200 Pier Proj NYPA Expense 2,832

5003 Due to City of Yonkers 2,832

5003 Due to City of Yonkers 72,652
Total 75,484 75,484
Adjusting Journal Entries JE# 9
To adjust lease receivable & deferred inflow for the rent received in
the current year.

5303 Deferred inflow GASB 87 56,583

7200 Pier License Fee 60,000

2057 Lease Receivable GASB 87 57,692

7200 Pier License Fee 56,583

99999999 Lease Interest Revenue 2,308

Total 116,583 116,583
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 10
To record Bad Debt Expense related to lease deferred inflow and set
up allowance against Lease receivable.

5303 Deferred inflow GASB 87 115,385

9010 Bad Debt Expense 2,220

5303 Deferred inflow GASB 87 2,220

9999 9999 115,385
Total 117,605 117,605

15



OCONNOR
DAVIES

ACCOUNTANTS AND ADVISORS
ESTABLISHED IN 1891

Appendix 2

Management Representation Letter

16



o=
OCONNOR
DAVIES

ACCOUNTANTS AND ADVISORS
ESTABLISHED IN 1891

Appendix 3

About PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP

17



PKF

OCONNOR
DAVIES

ACCOUNTANTS AND ADVISORS

Founded in 1891, PKF O'Connor Davies has evolved from a regional accounting
firm to an emerging national leader with more than 1,500 professionals and 18
offices in the U.S. Our team of top-notch professionals deliver a complete
range of audit, tax and advisory services to a diverse and growing global
client base. By bringing together a boutique firm cuiture with big-firm
resources, we have a unique ability to connect with clients ona

deeper lavel and create value where others can't.

REGIONAL CONNECTIONS BACKED BY

GLOBAL EXPERTISE

We are the lead North American firm in the PKF Intemational
network of independent accounting and advisory firms with
offices in over 400 cities, in 150 countries around the world.

I's a relationship that defivers unmatched access to
global expertise and strengthens our ability to serve
dients anywhere in the world as their needs and their
businesses continue to evolve.

PROACTIVE SERVICE MODEL,
ENGAGED PARTNER BASE

With a proven, proactive service mode! and an
engaged Partner base, PKF O'Connor Davies
has built longHasting, vaksable relationships with
our clients.

Our Partners are aclively involved in the day-to-
day management of engagements, ensuring a
high degree of client service and cost effectiveness.
The Finn's seasoned professional staff members
employ a team approach to all engagements,
providing dients with the utmost quality and timely
services aimed at helping them succeed.

KNOW GREATER VALUE

Our unwavering focus on value has consistently driven

growth and delivered strong outcomes for our clients

and ouwr Firm. PKF O'Connor Davies curmently ranks 25th

on Accounting Today’s 2023" “Top 100 Firms® list and

continually gains acclaim as one of the country’s fastest-
growing firms. With more professionals, in more places every
day, our teams are on the ground, at the ready and in the know.
As the world changes, PKF O'Connor Davies clients will always

Know Greater Value.

INDUSTRY RECOGNITION

Ranked 25 of “2023's Top 100 Finms”
Accounting Today, 2023

“America’s Best Tax and Accounting
Firms”
Forbes, 2023

“Top Tax Firm”
Accounting Today, 2023

Ranked 5 of the ‘Top Firms in the
Mid-Atlantic”
Accounting Today, 2023

“Best Places to Work in Westchester”
9714INC., 2023

Ranked 10 of the 50 “Best Accounting
Employers to Work for in North America”
Vault, 2024

Ranked #1 in Three Diversity Categories
Vault, 2024

"Accounting/Due Diligence Fimn
of the Year”
The M&A Advisor, 2023

‘Best Accountancy Advisor”
Family Wealth Report Awards, 2022

“Best Family Office Management
Consultancy”
Family Wealth Report Awards, 2022

“Best Accounting Firm in Westchester”
914INC., 2022

“Best Places to Work in New Jersey”
NJBIZ, 2023
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K N ow At PKF O'Connor Davies we maintain a relentless commitment to understanding
each dient’s operations and financial history so we can uncover every challenge,

G REATE R help meet every objective and exceed expectations. Through our unwavering client

. focus we create deeper connections, delivering tailored support and expertise that
VALU E drive real-world value.

J-_Q—\ ACCOUNTING §G59 FAMILY OFFICE SERVICES
& AND ASSURANCE SERVICES " Accounting and Reporting

« Accounting Outsourcing * Advisory

< Agreed-Upon Procedures (AUPs) » Charitable Giving

* Audits, Revisws and Compilations * Family Advisory Services

« Elits Accounting Services * Investment Monitoring and Oversight

« Employee Benefit Plans » Lifestyle Support

» Endowment Fund Accounting + Personal Financial Management

+ Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) ¢ Tax Planning

+ IT Audit and Cybersecurity Reviews ¢ Wealth Planning

* Peer Review

* Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (PCAOB) INTERNATIONAL SERVICES

» Public Sector Audits and Compliance « China Desk

+ General Data Protection Regulation (GDPRY)

(% ADMINISTRATION SERVICES - German Desk

» Fund Administration Services = Latin America Desk

* Qutsourced CFO Services + Transfer Pricing

» Outsourced Portfolio Company Accounting
Bl INVESTMENT BANKING SERVICES

@ ADVISORY SERVICES « Acquisition Advisory
¢ Bankruptcy and Restructuring » Exit Readiness and Transaction Planning
« Cybersecurity and Privacy Advisory Services + Sell-Side Advisory
* Dark Web Monitoring Services
« Digital Forensic Services
- ESG, Sustainability and Impact Optimization ;::‘ﬁg”“"c'i AND PLANNING
» Family Advisory Services . "
- Forensic, Litigation and Valuation Services : maﬂ:f:::a':g and Tax Compliance
: uﬁaﬂ&"&?ﬂ:ﬂm oy * IRS Representation and Tax Controversies
« Operational and Cost Effectiveness * Personal Financial Planning
« PPP Loan Fi Senvi + Private Client/Business Owner Sefvices
an Forgiveness cas s Sl
+ Private Client/Business Owner Services rivate Foundation Services
« Recruiting and Human Resources Consulting : _?::9 3“‘:“ 'i-:::'e ?nxd(SALT) ng
: g::w and T?::‘“sf?:naﬂon » Tax Research and Strategic Planning
- System Organization Control (SOC) Reports : iﬂ;tEX:L"lét glgag'lzaﬂpns
- Transaction and Financial Advisory Services fustand Es anning
* Virtual Chief Information Security Officer Services (vCISO)
* Wealth Services

Services Offered by PKF Clear Thinking —
Tumaround Advisory, Performance Improvement and
Creditors’ Rights

“PKF O’Connor Davies” is the brand name under which PKF Q'Connor Davies LLP and PKF O'Connor Davies Advisory LLC, independently owned
entities, provide professional services in an atemative practice structure in accordance with applicable professional standards. PKF O’Connor Davies
LLP Is a loansad CPA firm that provides attest services and PKF O’Connor Davies Advisary L1 C and its subsidiary entities provide tax and advisory
services. PKF O'Comnor Davies Is a member of the PIFF Intemational Limitad network of legally independent firns and does not accept any responsibilty
or liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any ather individual member firm or firms.

PKF
OCONNOR
DAV' ES pkfod.com

ACCOUNTANTS AND ADVISORS



470 Nepperhan Avenue, Suite 200
Yonkers, New York 10701
www.yonkersida.com

p. 914.509.8651
f. 914.509.8650
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY e. info@yonkersida.com

DRAFT

2023 Annual Report Summary
This report is being submitted in accordance with PAAA requirements.

Operations and Accomplishments

Operations

The City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency is a public benefit corporation established
by an act of the New York State Legislature in 1982, under Section 903 of the General Municipal
Law. The agency operates for the benefit of the City of Yonkers and its populace to accomplish
any or all of the purposes specified in Title 1 of Article I8A. Specific powers and duties are
conferred to the agency with respect to the acquisition of real property, whether by purchase,
condemnation or otherwise, within the corporate limits of the City of Yonkers. All of the local
zoning and planning regulations, as well as the regional and local comprehensive land use plans,
are taken into consideration to carry out the duties of the agency.

Organized in a manner consistent with the statute, the Mayor of Yonkers appoints a six
member Board of Directors comprised of both public officials and business leaders. This Board
governs the IDA by establishing official policies, reviewing and approving requests for financial
assistance. Operations and activities of the agency, it members, officers and employees are
carried out in accordance with State law.

The IDA’s mission is to generate economic development and job growth throughout the City of
Yonkers by attracting new businesses; retaining existing ones and helping them all become
competitive in a global marketplace. The agency accomplishes this mission by offering financial
assistance in the form of Sales and Use Tax Exemptions, Mortgage Recording Tax Exemptions
and Payment-In-Lieu-Of-Tax agreements (PILOTs) and by facilitating the issuance of tax exempt
Industrial Development Bonds (IDB’s)

The IDA held a board meeting on November 21, 2023 and approved the 2024 budget. Board
members reviewed and approved the 2023 Annual Report, as well as the Real Property and
Investment Reports at the April 23, 2024 meeting.
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Accomplishments

In 2023, the Agency received the following FIVE applications for inducement and approval:

1. 345 Mclean 2.1111 Central Park Ave 3. 155 Elliott LLC
4., Main Street Lofts 5. Yonkers BV AMS LLC

The Agency closed on seven projects during the year:

1. Mary the Queen Housing Development Total Investment $44.8M
Mary the Queen consists of the adaptive reuse of the former Convent of Mary the
Queen into a 73-unit affordable senior housing development. The 4 story, 66,000 sq
foot building was constructed in 1957 and has been vacant since 2015. The building will
include, 73 units which consists of 52 studio, 20 one-bedroom, and 1 two-bedroom
(super).

2. Wheeler Block Yonkers, LLC Total Investment $12.7M
Wheeler Block Lofts comprises of three contiguous historic buildings located on 15-23 N
Broadway. The interiors of the buildings will be combined into a singular building
creating corridors that will run through 15 to 23 North Broadway. The ground floor will
have commercial space, with three floors of residential above. The residential portion
will contain 36 apartments, 24 of which will be 1-bedroom, and 12 will be alcove
studios. 5 units will be for tenants that qualify for “HOME” rents, one 1-bedroom
apartment will be set aside for ‘Low’ HOME rent, three one bedrooms will be set for
‘High’ HOME rent, and 1 studio will be held aside for ‘HIGH’ HOME rent.

3. St. Clair Development Total Investment $63.0M
Macquesten Development LLC, proposes to construct a 10-story mixed-use building with
ground floor commercial space, 76 affordable rental dwelling units, and related parking
and infrastructure located at 36-38 Main Street, 32 Main Street, and 1-3 Riverdale Ave.
This includes 12 studios, 36 one-bedroom, 23 two-bedroom, and 5 three-bedroom units.
These residential rental units would be occupied only by person of low income whose
annual household incomes ranges from 40% to 80% of the Westchester AMI.

4. WY Manor Total Investment $84.3M
WY Manor is a 195-unit multifamily development which consist of two 12-story
buildings (32 studios, 34 one-bedroom, 60 two bedroom, 54 three-bedroom, and 15
four-bedroom), and a single-story community facility/daycare. There is a commercial
spaces, grocery store and storage facility along the front of the property. The project will
go under a rehabilitation to improve heating, cooling, installation of new
windows/roofs. There will apartment upgrades such as new LVT floorings, interior
finishes, replacement of kitchen cabinets, upgrade bathrooms, countertops, sinks,



faucets, etc. There will also be an upgraded camera security system which will allow for
greater coordination between the security team and the Yonkers Police Department.

5. Monastery Manor Total Investment $17.8M
This is an existing project that is refinancing the existing YIDA bonds allowing the
property to extend its affordability and creating cash flow to undertake new upgrades to
the building.

6. 70 Pier Total Investment $18.1M
70 Pier is a mixed-use building to be constructed on the south side of Abe Cohen Plaza
at the Ludlow Metro-North Train Station. The project consists of a 4 story building
containing 36 residential rental apartments with a unit mix of 6 studios, 18 one-
bedroom, and 12 two-bedroom. In addition to the building’s lobby, the ground floor will
include 3,125 sq feet of neighborhood retail and indoor parking for 35 cars.

7. 155 Elliott LLC Total Investment $5.55M
The Property located at 155 Elliot Ave consists of a vacant and overgrown, old
abandoned synagogue. The Property now consists of 24,000 sq. ft., up from 19,000 sq.
ft. The Property will be developed with a 3-story residential building containing 24 rental
housing units (10 Studios, 6 One-Bedroom, 4 Two-Bedroom and 4 Three-Bedroom). The
property was developed in a way to preserve the exterior facade of the historical
building.

Other Accomplishments

The YIDA Scholarship Program was in its 22nd consecutive year. YIDA awarded a total of
$25,000 annually in scholarships to 10 high school seniors from the Yonkers Public Schools and
Sacred Heart High School in June 2023. The scholarships were funded by an agency agreement
with a company, which previously received financial incentives through YIDA. Under the terms
of the agreement, the company will continue to fund the scholarship program each year
through 2034 ($25,000).

In support of the projects and their success, YIDA staff proudly attended the groundbreakings of
70 Pier, KCT Cubesmart, and St. Clair Development, as well as the topping off ceremony of the
56 Prospect LLC. In an effort to attract new development to the City, YIDA continually
participates in outreach efforts to encourage new investment.
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2023 Yonkers IDA Annual Report

CERTIFICATE OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Yonkers Industrial Development Agency

The undersigned, being the duly appointed chief executive officer and chief fiscal officer of the
Yonkers Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency"), hereby certify, pursuant to subdivision
3 of Section 2800 of the Public Authorities Law, as follows:

The financial information provided within the Annual Report of the Agency, dated as of March
28th, 2023 is accurate, correct, and does not contain any untrue statement of material fact.
The Annual Report does not omit any material fact, which, if omitted, would cause the report to
be misleading in light of the circumstances under which the report and any such statements
made therein are made. The Annual Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial
condition and results of operations of the Corporation as of, and for, the period presented in
said report.

The Annual Report is hereby approved.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned chief executive officer and chief fiscal officer have
executed this Certificate as of the 23™ day of April, 2024.

Marlyn Anderson Siby S. Oommen
IDA Board Member, Secretary Chief Fiscal Officer YIDA
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INDUCEMENT RESOLUTION
(The Abbey on Park Project)

A regular meeting of the City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency was convened in
public session on April 25, 2024. The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:

Resolution No. 04/2024 - 04

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF YONKERS INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT
AGENCY ACCEPTING THE APPLICATION OF THE KEARNEY REALTY
AND DEVELOPMENT GROUP, INC. WITH RESPECT TO A CERTAIN
PROJECT (AS DESCRIBED BELOW) AND (ii) AUTHORIZING A PUBLIC
HEARING WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New
York, as amended, and Chapter 83 of the Laws of 1982 of the State of New York, as amended
(hereinafter collectively called the “Act”), CITY OF YONKERS INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (hereinafter called the “Agency”) was created with the authority
and power to own, lease and sell property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring,
constructing and equipping civic, industrial, manufacturing and commercial facilities as authorized
by the Act; and

WHEREAS, KEARNEY REALTY AND DEVELOPMENT GROUP, INC., for itself
or an entity to be formed (the “Company”) has submitted an application (the “Application”) to the
Agency requesting the Agency’s assistance with a certain project (the “Project”) consisting of: (A)
the acquisition or retention of the land, including, but not limited to, all easements, licenses, and
other real property interests owned or controlled by the Company where improvements benefitting
the Project are situated, commonly known as 21-23 Park Avenue (Section 2, Block 2090, Lot 44),
City of Yonkers, New York (the “Land”); (B) the construction, improving and equipping on the
Land of (i) 82 new affordable multi-family residential rental units in three buildings of which (a)
one will be a new facility containing 33 residential rental units and (b) two will be 49 new
residential rental units in the historic Ethan Flagg House and Blessed Sacrament Monastery, (i)
of the 82 units, 31 units will be studios, 41 units will be one-bedroom, and 10 units will be two-
bedroom, (iii) resident amenities including bicycle storage, on site-management, workspace and
artists’ spaces, (iv) sidewalk improvements on Park Avenue, and (v) approximately 64 parking
spaces (24 on-site spaces, and 58 spaces which will be leased from a nearby parking facility) (the
“Improvements”), (C) of the total 82 residential rental units, (i) 81 units will be provided at or
below 60% Area Median Income, and 1 unit will be a superintendent’s unit and (i1) 20% to 50%
of the residential rental units will give rental preference to persons working in artistic or literary
careers; and (D) the acquisition and installation in and around the Land and Improvements of
certain items of equipment and other tangible personal property (the “Equipment”, which together
with the Land and Improvements are the “Facility”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Agency desires to adopt a resolution describing the
Project, Facility, and the Financial Assistance that the Agency is contemplating with respect to the
Project to ensure that the Project remains affordable; and



YIDA Resolution No. 04/2024-04
Inducement Resolution — The Abbey on Park
April 23,2024

TC: Harris Beach PLLC

WHEREAS, it is contemplated that the Agency will hold a public hearing and (i) negotiate
and enter into an agent, financial assistance and project agreement, pursuant to which the Agency
will designate the Company as its agent for the purpose of acquiring, constructing and equipping
the Project (the “Agent Agreement”), (i1) negotiate and enter into a lease agreement (the “Lease
Agreement”), leaseback agreement (the “Leaseback Agreement”) and tax agreement (the “Tax
Agreement”) with the Company, and, if required by the Agency, a Tax Agreement mortgage (the
“Tax Agreement Mortgage”), (iii) take a leasehold interest in the Land, the Improvements and
personal property constituting the Project (once the Agent Agreement, Lease Agreement,
Leaseback Agreement and Tax Agreement (and Tax Agreement Mortgage, if applicable) have
been negotiated), and (iv) provide financial assistance (as that term is defined in the Act) to the
Company in the form of (a) a sales and use tax exemption for purchases and rentals related to the
acquisition, construction and equipping of the Project, (b) a partial real property tax abatement
structured through the Tax Agreement, and (c¢) an exemption of State of New York (“State”) and
local mortgage recording taxes (collectively, the “Financial Assistance”).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE AGENCY AS
FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Company has presented the Application in a form acceptable to the
Agency. Based upon the representations made by the Company to the Agency in the Company's
Application, the Agency hereby finds and determines that:

(A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all
powers granted to it under the Act; and

(B)  The Agency has the authority to take the actions contemplated herein under the Act;
and

(C)  The action to be taken by the Agency will induce the Company to develop the
Project, thereby increasing employment opportunities in the City of Yonkers and otherwise
furthering the purposes of the Agency as set forth in the Act; and

(D)  The Project will not result in the removal of a civic, commercial, industrial, or
manufacturing plant of the Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project from one area
of the State to another area of the State or result in the abandonment of one or more plants or
facilities of the Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project located within the State;
and the Agency hereby finds that, based on the Company’s application, to the extent occupants are
relocating from one plant or facility to another, the Project is reasonably necessary to discourage
the Project occupants from removing such other plant or facility to a location outside the State
and/or is reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive position of the Project occupants in
their respective industries.

Section 2. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, President, Executive Director, Secretary
and/or the CFO are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to (A) hold a public hearing in
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YIDA Resolution No. 04/2024-04
Inducement Resolution — The Abbey on Park
April 23,2024

TC: Harris Beach PLLC

compliance with the Act, and (B) negotiate (1) an Agent Agreement, pursuant to which the Agency
appoints the Company as its agent to undertake the Project, (2) a Lease Agreement, pursuant to
which the Company leases the Project to the Agency, (3) a related Leaseback Agreement, pursuant
to which the Agency leases its interest in the Project back to the Company, (4) a Tax Agreement,
pursuant to which the Company agrees to make certain payments in lieu of real property taxes for
the benefit of affected tax jurisdictions, (5) a Tax Agreement Mortgage, and (6) related Project
certificates, instruments, agreements, and documents; provided (i) the rental payments under the
Leaseback Agreement include payments of all costs incurred by the Agency arising out of or
related to the Project and Facility and indemnification of the Agency by the Company for actions
taken by the Company and/or claims arising out of or related to the Project; and (ii) the terms of
the Tax Agreement is consistent with the Agency's Uniform Tax Exemption Policy or the
procedures for deviation therefrom have been complied with.

Section 3. The Agency is hereby authorized to conduct a public hearing in compliance
with the Act.
Section 4. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized

and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required and
to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees, charges
and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the opinion of
the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing
resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants and provisions
of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency.

Section 5. The Resolution shall take effect immediately.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call,
which resulted as follows:

Yea Nay Abstain Absent

Mayor Mike Spano
Marlyn Anderson
Melissa Nacerino
Hon. Cecile D. Singer
Henry Djonbalaj
Roberto Espiritu
Victor Gjonaj

[ T s B s B s W s B e W |
Sy S S IS o Sy S
[ T s B s B s W s B e W |
Sy S S IS o Sy S
[ T s B s B s W s B e W |
Sy S S IS o Sy S
[ T s B s B s W s B e W |
Sy S S IS o Sy S

The Resolution was thereupon duly adopted.
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Inducement Resolution — The Abbey on Park
April 23,2024

TC: Harris Beach PLLC

CERTIFICATION
(The Abbey on Park Project)

STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER ) ss.:

I, MARLYN ANDERSON, the undersigned Secretary of the City of Yonkers Industrial
Development Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the annexed extract of minutes of the meeting of the City of Yonkers
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), including the resolution contained therein, held
on April 23, 2024, with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true and
correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolution set forth therein and of the
whole of said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting,
that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public Officers
Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public notice of
the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with Article 7.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present
throughout said meeting.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force
and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said Agency
this  day of April, 2024.

Marlyn Anderson, Secretary

Page 4
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Project Evaluation Criteria

Date April 4, 2024
Company Name The Abbey @ Park
Project Type MNew Development ™ Rehab [ Expansion

O Commercial

O Industrial

O Retail (Restaurant)

M Housing: O Senior ™ Affordable O Market Rate

O Public Use

Location

Address 21-23 Park Avenue
Distressed Area M Yes O No
Empire Zone O Yes O No

Approximate Project Cost
$58,915,217

Benefits Requested

M Sales Tax Exemption M IRB M MRT Exemption M Real Property Agreement

Project Purpose

Job Creation

Job Retention
Community Development
Quality of Life

Regionally Significant

NN NRNORX

Development that will attract other investment
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Project Evaluation Criteria

Describe Below IDA Justification for Inducing Project:

Description to address one or more of the following concepts

4] The economic need for the City of Yonkers (“City”) to have the applicant remain in or locate
within the City;

4| The economic, charitable, cultural or other contribution that the applicant will provide to the
City and its residents if the application is granted;

4| The extent to which receiving IDA benefits adds to the viability of the applicant concerning any
activities within the City;

4] The extent to which granting the application will improve the quality of life to residents in the
City; and

™M The extent to which granting the application will complement existing business development in the
City.

Kearney Realty & Development Group, Inc. (Kearney Group) is proposing The Abbey on Park (The
Abbey) at 21-23 Park Avenue, City of Yonkers, Westchester County, New York (Site). The Abbey is
an innovative workforce and artist housing development. The Abbey will consist of two (2)
rehabilitated buildings, the historic Ethan Flagg House and the historic Blessed Sacrament
Monastery, as well as one (1) new construction building. The historic Ethan Flagg House and
Blessed Sacrament Monastery will be rehabilitated to provide forty-nine (49) residential apartments.
The new construction building will contain thirty-three (33) residential apartments, for a total of eighty-
two (82) residential apartments. Of the apartments, thirty-one (31) will be studios, forty-one (41) will
be one-bedrooms, and ten (10) will be two bedroom

Currently, the Site’s existing buildings are predominately vacant and unused including thirty-five (35)
vacant affordable residential units. The development of The Abbey would revamp the vacant
affordable housing units, while simultaneously more than doubling the number of affordable housing
units. Eighty-one (81) of the eighty-two (82) total units would be rented at 60% AMI, with the
remaining unit being reserved as a non-rent bearing superintendent’s unit. In addition, The Abbey will
provide a preference for those involved in artistic or literary activities for 20% to 50% of the units. The
redevelopment will also include improvements of the sidewalk fronting the Site along Park Avenue.
The Abbey is well positioned to start construction in Summer 2024. The construction is anticipated to
take twenty (20) months.

JOB CREATION AND RETENTION:

o Appx 2 FTE jobs
o Appx 150 Construction jobs
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¢ Carparation

APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

470 Nepperhan Avenue | Suite 200 |Yonkers, New York 10701
(914) 509-8651 www.yonkersida.com

PLEASE NOTE: Confidential information should NOT be inserted in this form as this form WILL BE posted on our public
website. All confidential information should be inserted by marking “see confidential attachment note 1" etc.

APPLICANT INFORMATION

Applicant’s Name:

The Kearney Realty & Development Group, Inc.

Date of final application Submission: / /

Name of Person Completing Application and Title:

Sean Kearney - Vice President

Name of Company (if applicable):

The Kearney Realty & Development Group, Inc.

Address:

Phone: Mobile:

845-306-7705

57 Route 6, Suite 207, Baldwin Place, NY 10505

E _

PROJECT INFORMATION

Project Address: 21-23 Park Ave

Block(s)&Lot(s)zz -2090 - 44

Present Legal Owner of Site:
23 Park Avenue Limited Partnership

Is applicant/affiliate present owner of the site? [J Yes No

How will the site be acquired: (if applicable)

Contract of Sale

When is the site planned to be acquired:
Construction Finance Closing (August 2024)

Current Proposed
Zone: M Zone: M

Are any variance
needed:

Area Variance - Completed

IS THIS PROJECT LOCATED IN: Distressed Area: B Yes [

Former Empire Zone: 1 Yes OJ No  *if unknown inquire with IDA Staff

PRINCIPAL USE OF PROJECT: Attach a brief project Narrative Statement describing project {i.e: land acquisition, scope of

construction, timeline, sq footage, usage, anticipated revenues, contribution to community, etc.) and renderings.

IS THE LOCATION CURRENTLY:

O vacant land
EH Abandoned
O in use/ occupied

Please provide a brief description of the CURRENT
use of project location(s):

Please see project narrative

PROPOSED PROJECT’S OPERATION TYPE:
O Retail [ Other:
select type: [ Senior W Affordable [J Market Rate

O commercial
O Residential

# of units 82
unitmix: 100% affordable

street level use: Residential

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PRINCIPAL USE OF PROJECT UPON COMPLETION:

Please see project narrative

Estimated date project will need to begin utilizing benefits:

Likelihood of accomplishing proposed project within three (3) years:

08 ;01,2024

B Likely or [ Unlikely

v.2022
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Yonkers Ecanomic Developmant Carparation

N
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

470 Nepperhan Avenue | Suite 200 |Yonkers, New York 10701
(914) 509-8651 www.yonkersida.com

ESTIMATED PROJECT COSTS (Use best estimates. Any amendments should be sent as addendum to application)

VALUE OF PROPERTY to be acquired

If you intend to leverage property already owned indicate intended mortgage value:

TOTAL COST OF CONSTRUCTION: (/abor + materials)
Labor: $ 12,943,700

Equipment/Materials: $ 18,626,300

s 4,900,000

s
s 37,789,290

NON CONSTRUCTION Equipment / Furnishings:
SOFT COSTS:
Other (explain): Reserves & Dev. Fee

TOTAL PROJECT COST

What is the estimated Fair Market Value of the project upon completion:

s
s 8,758,128

s 7,467,799
s 58,915,217
s 9,400,000

Is there likelihood that the Project would NOT be undertaken IF NOT FOR financial assistance provided by the Agency?
= Yes [0 No Included with project narrative provide an statement of why the Project should be undertaken by the Agency

COST (Financial Assistance) BENEFIT (Economic Development) ANALYSIS

Value of EXEMPTIONS
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE REQUESTED (check all that apply) Estimated
B SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION: Value of taxable purchases:
. X

Estimated value of Goods and Services to be

exempt from sales and use tax S 18,626,300 SEl% $ 1,653,084

{see "Recapture” on page 8)

Estimated Mortgage amount:
B MORTGAGE RECORDING TAX EXEMPTION: 1456 Term Bondg: $g7,520,ooo . );% ¢ 456,975
Short-Term Bond: $22,945,000 i

= REAL PROPERTY TAX AGREEMENT (PILOT ) S

REQUESTED duration of PILOT: vears: 30
B INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BOND (IRB) Estimated value of bond:

Is a purchaser for the Bonds in place? S 30,465,000 S

= ves O No Short-Term Bond: $22,945,000 Long-Term Bond:{$7,520,000

TOTAL VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE REQUESTED:

Economic Development = BENEFIT

s 5,004,305
¢ 7,520,000

Private Funds invested

Estimated Bank Financing

Federal, State and Local grant/credit/loans/tax incentives
(include Public Funds sum from the attached Prevailing Wage

Checklist):

_Westchester County  $ 10,400,000
ESD ¢ 2,500,000
Tax Credits s 33,490,912

TOTAL INVESTMENT IN PROJECT $ 58,915,217

S
Addt’l Revenue to City/School District: $

OTHER BENEFITS:
B Community Development

Expected Gross Taxable Receipts:

B Development that will attract other investment
B Regionally Significant
B Improve the quality of life for the Residents of the City

Other:
Affordable Housing
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APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

470 Nepperhan Avenue | Suite 200 |Yonkers, New York 10701

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (914) 509-8651 www.yonkersida.com
EMPLOYMENT PLAN
If financial assistance is granted
CURRENT # # of jobs Estimate # Estimate the # of Estimate the # of residents of the
of jobs to be relocated of FT and PT jobs Labor Market Area in which the
AT TO FT and PT jobs TO BE CREATED upon Project is located that will fill the FT
the proposed the project to be THREE years after project and PT jobs to be created upon
project location location RETAINED completion THREE years after Project
completion*
Full Time - FT 2 2
Part Time - PT 1 1
Total

* abor Market Area includes: Westchester, Putnam, Dutchess

ESTIMATED SALARY FRINGE BENEFITS FOR JOBS TO BE RETAINED AND/OR CREATED BY DIRECTLY:

e ——— RETAINED | CREATED | (s averageors hang (& erageor § Fonge)
Management 3 [$20,000 - $50,000 included
Professional
Administrative
Production/Skilled Worker
Independent Contractor
Other (NOT including construction jobs)

ToTAL 3 [$20,000 - $50,000 included

Does the employment plan above include estimated job creation from commercial tenants?

0 YES
anNo
@ Not Applicable

If your employment plan above includes estimated jobs that are not directly employed by the Project please explain below:

N/A

v.2022
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Y E:DC APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Vonk, 1,

Y Eranomic D, 2 t Carporation

470 Nepperhan Avenue | Suite 200 |Yonkers, New York 10701
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (914) 509-8651 www.yonkersida.com

INTER-MUNICIPAL MOVE DETERMINATION

Will the project:

a) Resultin the removal or abandonment of a plant or facility of the applicant from one area of the State of New York
to another? [1Yes [ No

b) Result in the removal of a plant or facility of another proposed occupant of the project from one area of the State of
New York to another area of the State of New York? [J Yes No

¢) Result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities located in the State of New York? [J Yes No

If Yes, to any of the above explain how the Agency’s Financial Assistance is required to prevent the Project from
relocating out of the State or is reasonably necessary to preserve the Project occupants position in its respective industry:

CONSTRUCTION

Estimated Estimated

&MONTHS start: 03 /2(124

Estimate cost of project construction: $ 37 ’ 789 ’ 290
18,626,300
s12,943,700

Estimate how many construction jobs will be created as a result of this project:

Estimated length of construction: completion:

04 , 2026
MM

Yy

Total cost attributable to materials:

Total cost attributable to labor:

150

Estimated aggregate number of work hours of manual workers to be employed in project construction: 250

Will project construction be governed by a project labor agreement (“PLA") with the Building and Construction Trades
Council of Westchester and Putnam Counties, New York AFL-CIO (“Council”)*? [ Yes No

If you have answered YES to the preceding question, please attach a copy of the PLA; and you need not Complete the remaining portions of this Section
(but please see note below).
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Y E:DC APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Yonlkors Rommam s Dovaloposcat CHpacaon 470 Nepperhan Avenue | Suite 200 |Yonkers, New York 10701

(914) 509-8651 www.yonkersida.com

CONTRACTOR INFORMATION if contractor/subcontractor has a permanent location in or around Westchester County please use address.

List each Project Construction Contractor or Subcontractor below (currently known or reasonably expected to be hired)

B Contractor O Subcontractor

Company Name:

V" Sean Kearney Tern Construction & Development, LLC

*"**57 Route 6, Suite 207, Baldwin Place, NY 10505

O Contractor [0 Subcontractor

Name: Company Name:

Address:

O cContractor O Subcontractor

Name: Company Name:

Address:

1 This may be either a PLA already in effect with the landlord of the Project facility, or a PLA made (or to be made) between the Applicant and the
Council directly in connection with Project Construction.
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Y E:DC APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Yonkars Ecanomtic Davalopmont Chemeenticn 470 Nepperhan Avenue | Suite 200 |Yonkers, New York 10701
(914) 509-8651 www.yonkersida.com

CONSTRUCTION (continued)

If some or all of the Contractor(s) or Subcontractor(s) to be involved in Project construction cannot reasonably be
identified at this time, state whether it is Applicant’s intention to require the following in its contract(s) for Project

construction:
a) Local hiring (100 mile radius from project site): B Yes [1 No
b) Will contract require local hiring? [ Yes [ No
If Yes, percentage of manual workers that will be local: %
¢) Union Labor?: [ Yes No

d) If Non-Union, will contract require payment of Prevailing Wage?: [1 Yes No

If the answer to question “(b)” or “(c)” above is NO, explain omission:
While the construction contract will not stipulate local hiring, a preference will be utitized by the General Contractor (GC) for utilization

of local subcontractors. As the GC is an affiliate of the developer, this will allow the developer to ensure reasonable efforts are made to utilize local subcontractors.

Given the size of the development and it being 100% affordable, the development is not feasible if union labor or prevailing wage are required.

NOTES:
For purposes of this Application, “Prevailing Wage” shall mean the “prevailing rate of wage” as defined in Article 8 of the New York Labor Law.

If Applicant has indicated herein that Project Construction will involve a PLA, union labor, local hiring, and/or payment of Prevailing Wage, the
Agency reserves the right to include such requirements in the Project Documentation as conditions for the extension and retention of tax benefits.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:

Has the required environmental review under the State Environmental Quality Review Act (SEQRA) been completed?
E Yes O No

If yes, coordinated by which Lead agency?: City of Yonkers Zoning Board of Appeals

Please attach all documentation (e.g. environmental assessment form, environmental impact statement, findings and
determinations of lead agency, to the extent applicable).
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Y E:DC APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Y Er Develoy ¢ Carporation

470 Nepperhan Avenue | Suite 200 |Yonkers, New York 10701
(914) 509-8651 www.yonkersida.com

APPLICANT’S COUNSEL

Name of Counsel: Phone

Cannon Heyman & Weiss 518-465-1500

Address Email:

54 State St, Suite 1001, Albany, NY 12207

PRINCIPAL OWNERS DIRECTORS (List owners with 15% or more in equity holdings with and their ownership percentage)

Sean Kearney

Ken Kearney

Type of entity: B Taxable [J Tax-Exempt Establishment Date: 08 /30 /2006 State of Organization: NY

= Corporation [ Partnership : B General; Number of General Partners: 2

O Limited; Number of Limited Partners:
[ Limited Liability Company/Partnership: Number of Members:

O Sole Proprietorship

If a foreign organization, is the Applicant authorized to do business in the State of New York? [JYes [JNO

Corporate Structure — (Attach a schematic if Applicant is a subsidiary or otherwise affiliated with another entity)
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470 Nepperhan Avenue | Suite 200 |Yonkers, New York 10701
(914) 509-8651 www.yonkersida.com

PREVAILING WAGE CHECKLIST & MWBE GUIDANCE
(NY Labor Law § 224-a)
On January 1, 2022, certain projects receiving financial assistance from a public entity {e.g., industrial development agencies (IDA) and local
development corporations (LDC)) will be subject to prevailing wage requirements. While prevailing wage was previously limited to government
contracting, this legislation will subject certain projects approved by an IDA or an LDC to prevailing wage under the New York Labor Law and
MWBE requirements. Please use the following table as a checklist to confirm if a project will be subject to prevailing wage if approved:

1. Exempt a. Residential real estate (less than 4 units), B Yes
Project: b. Certain not-for-profit corporations with revenue under $5 million, O No
c. Certain Affordable Housing projects,
d. Certain manufactured home park projects,
e. Certain projects performed under a pre-hire collective bargaining agreement (e.g.,
labor peace agreement or project labor agreement),
f. Projects funded by § 16-n of the Urban Development Corporation Act or the
Downtown Revitalization Initiative,
g. Theinstallation of renewable energy systems, renewable heating or cooling systems,
or energy storage systems with a capacity of five (5) megawatts (AC) or less,
h. NYC IDA Food Retail Expansion to Support Health projects,
i.  NYC EDC Small Business Incubator programs under 10,000 sq. ft.,
I.  NYC Dept. of Education school construction under 60,000 sq. ft., and
k. Projects that receive certain tax benefits related to historicrehabilitation.

2. Covered Construction projects throughout the state whose total costs exceed $5 million and for 0 Yes
A0 which at least 30% of these costs are met through use of public subsidies.! O No
3. Public Fund a. Affordable New York Housing Program benefits, Exclude

Exemptions: b. Funds that are not provided primarily to promote, incentivize, or ensure that from above
construction work is performed, which would otherwise be considered public funds total
(as defined below),
c. Funds received for sewer projects or connections to existing sewer lines,
d. Tax benefits where the value is unknown at time of
construction, e. Tax benefits for the Brownfield Cleanup program,
f.  Funds for charter school facilities, and
g. Any public monies, credits, savings or loans deemed exempt by the Public Subsidy
Board.
4. Public Funds | a. Public entity grants, Total:
(Public b. Savings from fees, rents, interest rates, or loan costs, or insurance costs that are lower $
Subsidies): than market rate costs,
c. Savings from reduced taxes as a result of tax credits, tax abatements, tax exemptions
(i.e., sales tax and mortgage recording tax), or tax increment financing, PILOTS, and
d. Savings from reduced, waived, or forgiven costs (e.g., contingent loan repayments).
5. Effective The prevailing wage and MWBE requirements take effect on January 1, 2022, and shall’apply to contracts for
Date construction executed, incentive agreements executed, procurements or solicitations issued, or applications
for building permits on or after such date.
6. Reporting A project beneficiary must certify to the State Labor Commissioner if a project is a Covered
Requirement Project within five (5) days of commencement of construction. A Covered Project is subject to stop

1unotice of Expanded Legal Obligations under NYS Prevailing Wage" published on or about September 21, 2021 by the NYS Department of Labor
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Yonors Fosmoml Developmaan s ufsiensin 470 Nepperhan Avenue | Suite 200 |Yonkers, New York 10701

(914) 509-8651 www.yonkersida.com

MWBE & SDvOB

Additionally, a Covered Project must comply with the objectives and goals of minority and women-owned business
enterprises (MWBE) pursuant to Article 15-A of the New York Executive Law and service-disabled veteran-owned
businesses (SDVOB) pursuant to Article 17-B of the Executive Law.

The newest participation goal is 30% for MWBE and 6% for SDVOB. Contractors must demonstrate a "good faith" effort
to comply with the MWBE and SDVOB requirements. Good faith efforts can include the identification of participation
areas for MWBEs and SDVOBs and full utilization of lists of certified MWBEs and SDVOBs.

If, despite good faith efforts, a contractor is not able to retain an MWBE or SDVOB for a project, the company must
submit a Request for Waiver along with documentation of good faith effarts apd the reason they were unable to obtain
an MWBE or SDVOB.

Good faith efforts can be evidenced by:

1. Copies of solicitations (advertisements in MWBE or SDVOB-centered publications, those made to vendors in
MWBE or SDVOB directories, those made to MWBE or SDVOB-oriented trade and labor organizations, etc.) E

2. If these solicitations are answered, the contractor must also record specific reasons why the MWBE or SDVOB
enterprise was not selected. Dates of any pre-bid, pre-award or other meetings attended by the contractor,
if any, scheduled by the Department of Labor with certified MWBE or SDVOB enterprises. Information describing
the steps taken to ensure MWBE and SDVOB participation in a project. Descriptions of any other actions undertaken
by the bidder to document good faith efforts to retain MWBE and SDVOB enterprises.

Compliance:

Although full participation compliance is the preferred method, partial or no participation is acceptable so long as the
project beneficiary conforms to the requirements to fulfill and receive the waiver. Project beneficiaries of Covered
Projects may want to engage monitoring firms to ensure that good faith efforts are met and properly documented to
avoid penalties.

Resources:
Helpful resources
and administration forms for the MWBE and SDVOB programs can be found on the

NYS Department of Labor website in the middle of the page at the following address: https://dol.ny.gov/contract-bid-
grant-opportunities.
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Y E:DC APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

470 Nepperhan Avenue | Suite 200 |Yonkers, New York 10701
(914) 509-8651  www.yonkersida.com

REPRESENTATIONS by the APPLICANT

THE APPLICANT UNDERSTANDS AND AGREES WITH THE AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

A)

B)

Q)

D)

E)

F)

Job Listings — In accordance with Section 858-b(2) of the New York General Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees
that, if the Project receives and Financial Assistance from the Agency, except otherwise provided by collective bargaining
agreements, new employment opportunities created as a result of the Project will be listed with the New York State Department
of Labor Community Services Division (the “DOL”) and with the administrative entity (collectively with the DOL, the “JTPA
Entities”) of the service delivery area created by the federal job training partnership act (Public Law 97-300) (“JTPA”) in which
the Project is located.

First Consideration for Employ — In accordance with Section 858-b(2) of the New York General Municipal Law, the Applicant
understands and agrees that, if the Project receives and Financial Assistance from the Agency, except otherwise provided by
collective bargaining agreements, where practicable, the Applicant will first consider persons eligible to participate in JTPA
programs who shall be referred by the JTPA Entities for new employment opportunities created as a result of the Project.

Annual Sales Tax Filings — In accordance with the Section 874(8) of the New York General Municipal Law, the Applicant
understands and agrees that, if the project receives any sales tax exemptions as part of the Financial Assistance from the Agency,
in accordance with Section 874(8) of the General Municipal Law the Applicant agrees to file, or cause to be filed, with the New
York State Department of Taxation and Finance, the Annual form prescribed by the Department of Taxation and Finance,
describing the value of all sales tax exemptions claimed by the Applicant and all consultants or subcontractors retained by the
Applicant.

Annual Employment Reports — The Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any Financial Assistance from
the Agency, the Applicant agrees to file, or cause to be filed, with the Agency on an annual basis, reports regarding the number
of people employed at the project site including corresponding payroll records for the year ending.

Compliance with N.Y. GML Sec. 862(1): Applicant understands and agrees that the provisions of Section 862(1) of the New York
General Municipal Law, as provided below, will not be violated if Financial Assistance is provided for the proposed Project:

§ 862. Restrictions on funds of the agency. (1) No funds of the agency shall be used in respect of any project if the completion
thereof would result in the removal of an industrial or manufacturing plant of the project occupant from one area of the state
to another area of the state or in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the project occupant located within
the state, provided, however, that neither restriction shall apply if the agency shall determine on the basis of the application
before it that the project is reasonably necessary to discourage the project occupant from removing such other plant or facility
to a location outside the state or is reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive position of the project occupant in its
respective industry.

Compliance with Applicable Laws: The Applicant confirms and acknowledges that the owner, occupant, or operator receiving
Financial Assistance for the proposed Project is in substantial compliance with applicable local, state and federal tax, worker
protection and environmental laws, rules and regulations.
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¢ Carparation

470 Nepperhan Avenue | Suite 200 |Yonkers, New York 10701
(914) 509-8651 www.yonkersida.com

REPRESENTATIONS by the APPLICANT (continued)

G)

H)

J)

False and Misleading Information: The Applicant confirms and acknowledges that the submission of any knowingly false
or knowingly misleading information may lead to the immediate termination of any Financial Assistance and the
reimbursement of an amount equal to all or part of any tax exemption claimed by reason of the Agency’s involvement
the Project.

Recapture: Should the Applicant not expend or hire as presented, the Agency may view such information/status as failing
to meet the established standards of economic performance. In such events, some or all of the benefits taken by the
Applicant will be subject to recapture.

Absence of Conflicts of Interest — The Applicant has received from the Agency a list of the members, officers and
employees of the Agency. No member, officers or employees of the Agency has an interest, whether direct or indirect, in
any transaction contemplated by this Application, except as herein described:

All indemnifications and representations made by the Applicant in the within Application for Financial Assistance are
made both to YIDA and YEDC.

k) YIDA and YEDC are represented by Harris Beach PLLC as transaction counsel, or if Harris Beach PLLC has a conflict then YIDA

and YEDC will identify an alternative law firm to act as Transaction Counsel. You are responsible for the costs and
expenses of YIDA and YEDC Transaction Counsel and YIDA and YEDC will establish and have you maintain escrowed funds
as the project progresses to pay Transaction Counsel fees. YOU WILL RECEIVE AN ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AFTER
SUBMISSION OF THIS APPLICATION THAT OUTLINES ALL COSTS AND BENEFITS AND YOU WILL NEED TO SIGN THE
ACKNOWLEDGMENT BEFORE FINAL APPROVALS ARE MADE AVAILABLE.

The Company has completed the Agency’s Prevailing Wage Checklist, which is attached to this Application.

The Company hereby acknowledges and agrees that any “financial assistance”, as such term is
defined in the Act, received from the Agency constitutes “public funds” unless otherwise excluded
under Section 224-a(3) of the New York Labor Law, and by executing this Application, (i} confirms
that it has received notice from the Agency pursuant to Section 224-a(8)(d) of the New York Labor
Law and (ii) acknowledges its obligations pursuant to Section 224-a(8)(a) of the New York Labor
Law. The Agency makes no representations or covenants with respect to the total sources of
“public funds” received by the Company in connection with the Project.
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470 Nepperhan Avenue | Suite 200 |Yonkers, New York 10701
(914) 509-8651  www.yonkersida.com

A
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT

Applicant hereby releases City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency and the members, officers, servants, agents
and employees thereof (the “Agency”) from, and agrees that the Agency shall not be liable for and the applicant agrees to
indemnify, defend, pay and hold the Agency harmless from and against any and all liability arising from or expense incurred
by the Agency concerning (A) the Agency’s costs and expenses in the examination and processing of, as well as action pursuant
to or upon, the attached Application, as well as verification of assertions in the application or other applicant submittals or
applicant claims made now or in the future, regardless of whether or not the application or the Project described therein or
the tax exemptions and other assistance requested therein are favorably acted upon by the Agency, (B) the Agency’s costs and
expenses in reviewing any acquisition, construction and/or installation of the Project described therein and (C) and further
action, costs and expenses taken by the Agency — with respect to the project; including without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, all causes of action and fees and expenses for Agency attorneys, accountants, economists, engineers, architects or
other professionals or consultants incurred regarding any part of the application or the review and/or approval and/or
monitoring of compliance by the applicant with all laws, rules and regulations and/or in defending any suits or actions which
may arise as a result or any for the foregoing. If, for any reason, the applicant fails to conclude or consummate necessary
negotiations, or fails, within a reasonable or specified period of time, to take reasonable, proper or requested action, or
withdraws, abandons, cancels or neglects the Application, or if the Agency or the applicant are unable to reach final agreement
with the respect to the Project, then, in the event, upon presentation of an invoice itemizing the same, the applicant shall pay
to the Agency, its agents or assigns, all costs incurred by the Agency in the processing of the Application, including fees and
expenses for Agency attorneys, accountants, economists, engineers architects or other professionals or consultants, if any.

Applicant upon approval shall be responsible for any reasonable costs incurred by the Agency to verify employment
or use of benefits received by the YIDA or other information required under the Public Authorities Accountability Act or other
law, rule or regulation otherwise at the time said Verification is required.

This Indemnity and Hold Harmless Agreement shall survive any closing or other transaction in which benefits are
sought or received by the applicant and shall continue for a period of time up to and including three years after the fast benefit
is received by the applicant from the City of Yonkers industrial Development Agency.
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Yok Reviesmit Dovalopsont QU0 470 Nepperhan Avenue | Suite 200 |Yonkers, New York 10701
DOUSTRAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (914) 509-8651 www.yonkersida.com
| CERTIFICATION

The applicant and the individual executing this application on behalf of the applicant acknowledge that the Agency will rely on the
representations made herein when acting on this application and hereby represent that the statements made herein do not

contain any untrue statement of a material fact and do not omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
contained herein not misleading.

STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER ) ss.:

Sean Kearney , being first duly sworn, deposes and says:

1. Thatlamthe Vice President of _Kearney Realty & Dev. Group _ and that | am

(Corporate Officer) {Applicant)
duly authorized on behalf of the Applicant to bind the Applicant.

2. That | have read the attached Application, | know the contents thereof, and that to the best of my knowledge and belief, this
Application and the contents of this Application are true, accurate and complete.

i i ““ ),—_—7-

K \)c"(\N A @yéﬁm; of Officén

Subscribed and affirmed to me under penalties of perjury
this ] _dayof_Mareh 2074

\\ /
S NOTARYPUBLIC =
Q)& I NO OILE6432524 =

i My Comm. Expires
ﬁuomw Public) ~ yMay? 2026
% §

APPLICATION FEE & PROCESSING _ '*ff,’fgg’;,?w;?\‘

Enclose with this Application is the non-refundable Application Fee in the amount of $600.% to remittance address:

YONKERS INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
470 Nepperhan Avenue, Suite 200

Yonkers New York 10701
FEES
AGENCY CLOSING FEE: ANNUAL ADMIN FEE:
The Agency will collect an Agency Fee at the time of IDA closing. The Agency will collect an Annual Administrative Fee based on
Fees are based on the type of financial transaction. (Please see fee your project type and amount. This fee will be due annually on Feb
schedule below) 28th, after IDA benefits are provided to the project.
(Please see fee schedule below)
ee Type Fee

Straight Lease Transactions .5% of Total Project Cost Project Type: Straight Lease Annual Fee
Bond Transactions 1% of Total Project Cost Up to $10M $ 500

over $10M $1,000

Proje : BONDS Annual Fee
Up to $10M $1,000
Over $10M $2,000

PLEASE NOTE: Confidential information should NOT be inserte<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>